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IMPORTANT  NOTICE  REGARDING  ACCEPTANCE  OF  NOTICES
FOR  PUBLICATION  IN  THE  WEEKLY  “GAZETTE”

ATTENTION is drawn to the Notification appearing in the 1st week of every month, regarding the latest dates and times of acceptance
of Notices for publication in the weekly Gazettes, at the end of every weekly Gazette of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes shall close at 12.00 noon of each Friday, two weeks before the date of
publication. All Government Departments, corporations, Boards, etc. are hereby advised that Notifications fixing closing dates and times
of applications in respect of Post-Vacancies, Examinations, Tender Notices and dates and times of Auction Sales, etc. should be prepared
by giving adequate time both from the date of despatch of notices to Govt. Press and from the date of publication, thereby enabling those
interested in the contents of such notices to actively and positively participate please note that inquiries and complaints made in respect
of corrections pertaining to notification will not be entertained after three months from the date of publication.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes should reach Government Press two weeks before the date of publication i.e.
notices for publication in the weekly Gazette of 10th  July, 2009 should reach Government Press on or before 12.00 noon on 26th  June,
2009.

LAKSHMAN  GOONEWARDENA,
Government Printer.

Department of Govt. Printing,
Colombo 08,
January 01, 2009.

AA

N.B.— Part III and IV(A) of the Gazette No. 1608 of 26.06.2009 were not published.

Notc.- (i) Tamed Elephants Owners’  Organization (Incorporation) Bill is published as a supplement to the Part  II of the Gazette of
the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka  of  April 30th , 2009.

(ii) Employee's Provident Fund  (Special Provisions) (Amendment) Bill is published as a supplement to the Part  II of the Gazette
of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka  of  April 30th , 2009.

(iii) Alhason Foundation (Incorporation)  Bill is published as a supplement to the Part  II of the Gazette of the Democratic Socialist
Republic of Sri Lanka  of  May 07th , 2009.
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Appointments, &c.  by the President
No. 214 of 2009

DRF/RECT/988/AY.

SRI  LANKA   ARMY—REGULAR   FORCE

Compulsory retirement from the Regular Force of the Sri
Lanka Army approved by His Excellency the President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the compulsory
retirement of the undermentioned Senior Officer from the Regular
Force of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 27th March, 2009.

Major General NIMAL ANESLY JAYASURIYA RWP RSP psc
(O/50748)

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
25th March, 2009.

07-54

No. 215 of 2009

DRF/21/RECT/2791.

SRI   LANKA   ARMY—REGULAR  FORCE

Confirmation of rank and retirement approved by His
Excellency the President

CONFIRMATION   OF   RANK

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the confirmation of the
undermentioned senior officer in the rank of Lieutenant Colonel with
effect from 02nd March, 2009.

Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) POLWATTAGE ACHALA

RAJASINGHE SAMARAKOON RWP RSP SLAC (O/61030)

RETIREMENT

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of the
undermentioned senior officer from the Regular Force of the
Sri Lanka Army with effect from 03rd March, 2009.

Lieutenant Colonel POLWATTAGE ACHALA RAJASINGHE SAMARAKOON

RWP RSP SLAC (O/61030)

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
13th February, 2009.

07-52

No. 216 of 2009

DRF/21/RECT/2773.

SRI    LANKA     ARMY—REGULAR    FORCE

Confirmation of rank and retirement approved by His
Excellency the President

CONFIRMATION    OF   RANK

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the confirmation of the
undermentioned officer in the rank of Major with effect from 30th
July, 2008.

Captain (Temporary Major) SAMAN PRIYANTHA PUSHPAKUMARA

DILLIMUNI SLASC (O/61106)

RETIREMENT

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of the
undermentioned officer from the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka
Army with effect from 31st July, 2008.

Major SAMAN PRIYANTHA PUSHPAKUMARA DILLIMUNI SLASC
(O/61106)

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
20th January, 2009.

07-51
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No. 217 of 2009

DRF/21/RECT/2794.

SRI    LANKA     ARMY—REGULAR   FORCE

Retirement approved by His Excellency the President

RETIREMENT

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of the
under mentioned officer from the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka
Army with effect from 01st December, 2008.

Major NAMBUKARA HELAMBAGE KOLITHA RUWAN SENATILLEKE

SLAMC (O/63390)

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
13th February, 2009.

07-53

No. 218 of 2009

DRF/21/RECT/2790.

SRI    LANKA    ARMY—REGULAR   FORCE

Compulsory retirement approved by His Excellency the
President

RETIREMENT

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the compulsory
retirement of the under mentioned officer from the Regular Force of
the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 28th February, 2009.

Major PITUWALA LIYANAGE JAGATH MOHAN DE SILVA SLSC
(O/61624)

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
13th February, 2009.

07-48

No. 219 of 2009

DRF/21/RECT/2799.

SRI     LANKA     ARMY—REGULAR    FORCE

Retirement approved by His Excellency the President

RETIREMENT

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of the
undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka
Army with effect from 03rd October, 2008.

Lieutenant GAMAGE DHARMATHILAKA SLAC (O/63930)

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
13th February, 2009.

07-50

DRF/21/RECT/2776.

SRI     LANKA      ARMY—REGULAR    FORCE

Withdrawal of Commission approved by His Excellency the
President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the withdrawal of
Commission of the undermentioned officer from the Regular Force
of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 31st January, 2009.

Lieutenant POLDUWAGE DON SUGATH CHAMINDA POLDUWAGE VIR
(O/65466)

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
10th February, 2009.

07-49
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Appointments & c., by the Judicial Service Commission
No. 220 of 2009

APPOINTMENTS

The Judicial Service Commission is Pleased to appoint following Officers to the post of Quazi

Serial Name Date of Period Area
No. appointment

01. Maulavi. A. L. Imam 01.07.2008 01 Year Nindavur, Assistant Government Division,
Ampara District.

02. Mr. K. L. M. Samsudeen 01.07.2008 03 Years Addalachchenai Assistant Government
Division, Ampara District.

03. Mr. S. A. R. M. S. A. Maulana 01.07.2008 01 Year Panamapattu (Potuvil) Revenue Division,
Ampara District.

04. Maulavi M. I. K. Raheem 01.07.2008 03 Years Yatinuwara Revenue Division, Kandy
District.

05. Mr. J. M. Mohideen 01.07.2008 03 Years Gampola Jurisdiction.

06. Maulavi M. R. M. Najimudeen 01.07.2008 03 Years Panadura Jurisdiction.

07. Maulavi A. R. M. Hazeem 01.07.2008 03 Years Negombo Jurisdiction.

08. Mr. S. Abdul Salam 01.07.2008 01 Years Maho Jurisdiction-
Maho, Wariyapola, Nikaweratiya,
Galgamuwa, Ambanpola, Jagama,
Palunambawala, Walpaluwa, Kanuketiya,
Ambukkagama and other minor villages in
the area.

09. Maulavi S. M. Ameer 01.07.2008 03 Years Matale Jurisdiction.

10. Mr. M. M. M. Museen 01.07.2008 03 Years Avissawella Jurisdiction.

11. Maulavi N. S. M. Gassali 01.07.2008 03 Years Akurana Divisional Secretariat Kandy
District.

12. Mr. A. M. Husein 01.07.2008 03 Years Colombo East-
(Attorney-at-Law) Hulfsdrop, Grandpass, Maligawatta,

St. Sebastian Road, Kwabazar, Thotalanga,
Kochchikade, Kotahena, Padukka,
Bokundara, Meegoda, Godagama, Panagoda,
Malabe, Thalangama-North, Kotikawatta
and Buthgama areas in the Colombo
Jurisdiction.

13. Mr. M. M. M. Nawas 01.07.2008 01 Year Galle Jurisdiction.
(Attorney-at-Law)

14. Mr. M. S. M. Nazeer 01.07.2008 03 Years Kalutara Jurisdiction.

15. Maulavi M. H. M. Lafeer 01.07.2008 03 Years Gampaha Jurisdiction.

16. Mr. M. T. M. Sein 01.07.2008 03 Years Kadawath Sathara and Gangawata Revenue
(Attorney-at-Law) Divisions, Kandy District.
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17. Maulavi A. C. M. Sadakatullah 01.07.2008 03 Years Kegalle Jurisdiction.

18. Mr. I. L. M. Azwer 01.07.2008 03 Years Colombo West-
(Attorney-at-Law) Dehiwala, Mt. Lavinia, Ratmalana,

Nugegoda, Papiliyana, Maharagama,
Pannipitiya, Homagama, Polgasowita,
Ingiriya, Rajagiriya, Battaramulla and
Aturugiriya areas in the Colombo
Jurisdiction.

19. Mr. M. I. A. Kader 01.07.2008 01 Year Akkaraipattu, Assistant Government
Division, Ampara District.

20. Maulavi S. A. B. A. S. Sugiyan 01.07.2008 03 Years Jaffna Jurisdiction and for people living in
destitute camps and internally displaced
people within Putlam/Kalpitiya Quazi
Jurisdiction.

21. Maulavi M. S. A. Hathi 01.07.2008 01 Year Kinniya Assistant Government Division,
Trincomalee District.

22. Maulavi M. M. Kareem 01.07.2008 03 Years Koddiyarapattu Revenue division
(Muththur), Trincomalee District.

23. Mr. M. M. M. Maharoof 01.07.2008 03 Years Manmunaipattu North, South, Iruwil and
Porathivu Revenue Divisions (Kattankudi),
Batticaloa District.

As per the directions of the Judicial Service Commission,

P. W. D. C. JAYATHILAKE,
Secretary,

Judicial Service Commission.

Judicial Service Commission Secretariat,
Colombo 12.
09th June, 2009.

07-01

Serial Name Date of Period Area
No. appointment

No. 221 of 2009

APPOINTMENTS

The Judicial Service Commission is Pleased to appoint following Officers to the post of Quazi

Serial Name Date of Period Area
No. appointment

01. Maulavi. M. S. M. Maharoof 01.04.2007 03 Years Hambantota Jurisdiction.

02. Maulavi A. L. M. Kaleel 01.04.2007 03 Years Slave Island, Cinnamon Gardens, Kollupitiya,
Bambalapitiya, Havelock Town,
Narahenpita, Wellawatte and Kirilapona
areas in the Colombo Jurisdiction.
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03. Maulavi S. L. A. Sathar 01.04.2007 03 Years Revenue Divisons in Nuwaragam, Hurulu and
Thalagam areas in Anuradhapura District.

04. Mr. A. H. M. Majeed 01.04.2007 03 Years Karaiwahupattu (North) and Kalminai
Divisional Secretariats-Ampara District

05. Mr. A. A. Majeed 01.04.2007 03 Years Varipathanchenai, Oddipharan, Unit 1A, Unit
11 A, Nallawanthimalai and Irakkamam
Grama Niladhari Divisions from No. 01 to
No. 09 in Akkaraipattu Jurisdiction.

06. Maulavi A. M. Ibrahim 01.04.2007 03 Years Eravurpattu Revenue Division, Batticaloa
District.

07. Mr. U. L. M. A. Kader 01.04.2007 03 Years Kurunegala Jurisdiction.

08. Mr. J. A. Waheed 01.04.2007 03 Years Kegalle Jurisdiction.

09. Mr. M. C. M. Rifaudeen 01.04.2007 03 Years Monaragala Jurisdiction.

10. Maulavi M. Anwardeen 01.04.2007 03 Years Udabulathgama Revenue Division, Kandy
District and Hapugasthalawa Village,
Nuwaraeliya District.

11. Mr. M. B. M. Husein 01.04.2007 03 Years Koralaipottu-West (Oddamawadi) Baticaloa
(Attorney-at-Law) District.

12. Maulavi. H. A. Gafoor 01.04.2007 03 Years Pahatha-Hewaheta, Births Marriages and
Deaths Registration Division, Kandy
District.

13. Mr. U. L. Ahamed Lebbei 01.04.2007 03 Years Polonnaruwa Jurisdiction.

14. Mr. A. Kadeer Lebbei 01.04.2007 03 Years East and West Kaddukulampattu Revenue
Division, Trincomalee District.

15. Maulavi M. C. Neina Mohamed 01.04.2007 03 Years Putlam and Chilaw Jurisdictions Except
Kalpitiya Divisional Secretariat in Putlam
District.

16. Mr. H. L. M. Jawfer 01.04.2007 03 Years Harispattuwa and Pujapitiya Divisional
Secretariats, Kandy District.

17. Mr. M. H. M. Yehiya 01.04.2007 03 Years Ratnapura Jurisdiction.

18. Mr. S. L. A. Razeed 01.04.2007 03 Years Samanthurai District Council No. 1 and
No. 2, Malkanpiti, Neinakadu, Malwatta,
Navindanweli and Annavilai areas in
Ampara District.

Serial Name Date of Period Area
No. appointment
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Serial Name Date of Period Area
No. appointment

19. Mr. A. M. M. Mustafa 01.04.2007 01 Year Thambalagamuwa and Kantale Divisional
Secretariats, Trincomalee District.

20. Mr. A. A. Asees 01.04.2007 03 Years Tumpane Divisional Secretariat, Kandy
District.

As per the directions of the Judicial Service Commission,

P. W. D. C. JAYATHILAKE,
Secretary,

Judicial Service Commission.

Judicial Service Commission Secretariat,
Colombo 12.
09th June, 2009.

07-02

No. 222 of 2009

TRANSFER  APPOINTMENTS

The Judicial Service Commission is Pleased to grant transfer appointments to following Judicial Officers

Index Name Class and Grade Effective date of Court/Appointment
No. of the Officer in the Judicial the transfer

Officer post Appointment

01. Mrs. S. A. Jayasena Special Grade Immediate Colombo Additional District Judge,
effect Additional Family Court Judge, Additional

Magistrate and Additional Primary Court
Judge.

02. Mr. S. U. B. Karalliyadda Class I/Grade I 01.10.2008 Mawanella District Judge, Family Court
Judge, Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate and
Primary Court Judge.

03. Mr. I. P. D. Liyanage 01.10.2008 Attanagalla Additional District Judge,
Additional Family Court Judge, Additional
Magistrate, Additional Juvenile Magistrate
and Additional Primary Court Judge.

04. Mr. C. H. G. Liyanage Class II/Grade I 01.10.2008 Walasmulla District Judge, Family Court
Judge, Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate and
Primary Court Judge.

05. Mr. S. M. A. S. Manchanayake Class II/Grade I 21.04.2008 Anuradhapura Additional magistrate,
Additional Juvenile Magistrate, Additional
Primary Court Judge, Additional District
Judge and Additional Family Court Judge.
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06. Miss. D. M. C. M. Danansooriya Class II/Grade I 21.04.2008 Kebithigollawa Magistrate, Juvenile
Magistrate and Primary Court Judge.

07. Mr. T. G. S. A. Perera Class I/Grade II 21.04.2008 Puttalam District Judge, Family Court Judge,
Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate and
Primary Court Judge.

08. Mr. A. M. A. W. Kumara Class II/Grade I 21.04.2008 Kurunegala Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate,
Primary Court Judge, Addl. District Judge
and Addl. Family Court Judge.

09. Mr. E. M. M. L. Ekanayaka Class I/Grade I 21.04.2008 Nawalapitiya District Judge, Family Court
Judge, Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate and
Primary Court Judge.

10. Mr. L. C. Madanayaka Class II/Grade I 01.04.2008 Matara Addl. Magistrate, Addl. Juvenile
Magistrate, Addl. Primary Court Judge,
Addl. District Judge, Addl. Family Court
Judge.

11. Mr. R. A. D. U. N. Ranthunga Class II/Grade I 01.04.2008 Morawaka District Judge, Family Court
Judge, Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate and
Primary Court Judge and Matara Addl.
District Judge and Addl. Family Court
Judge.

12. Mr. S. B. Abeykoon Special Grade 08.09.2008 Kandy Addl. District Judge, Addl. Family
Court Judge, Addl. Magistrate, Addl.
Juvenile Magistrate and Addl. Primary
Court Judge.

13. Mr. T. J. Prabakaran Class II/Grade I 17.11.2008 Mallakam Addl. District Judge, Addl. Family
Court Judge, Addl. Magistrate, Addl.
Juvenile Magistrate and Addl. Primary
Court Judge.

14. Mr. R. Wasanthasenan (Contract) Class II/Grade II Immediate Mawanella District Judge, Family Court
effect Judge, Magistrate, Jurenile Magistrate and

Primary Court Judge.

15. Mr. A. G. Alexrajah Class II/Grade I 17.11.2008 Mawanella District Judge, Family Court
Judge, Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate and
Primary Court Judge

16. Mr. A. Judesan Class II/Grade I 01.12.2008 Mannar District Judge, Family Court Judge,
Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate and
Primary Court Judge.

17. Mr. A. A. Anandarajah Class II/Grade I 01.12.2008 Jaffna Addl. District Judge, Addl. Family
Court Judge, Addl. Magistrate, Addl.
Juvenile Magistrate and Addl. Primary
Court Judge.

Index Name Class and Grade Effective date of Court/Appointment
No. of the Officer in the Judicial the transfer

Officer post Appointment
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Index Name Class and Grade Effective date of Court/Appointment
No. of the Officer in the Judicial the transfer

Officer post Appointment

18. Mrs. J. M. Mahadevan Class II/Grade I 01.12.2008 Point Pedro Addl. District Judge, Addl.
Family Court Judge, Addl. Magistrate,
Addl. Juvenile Magistrate and Addl.
Primary Court Judge.

19. Mrs. S. Alahapperuma Class I/Grade I Immediate Kaduwela Addl. District Judge, Addl. Family
effect Court Judge, Addl. Magistrate, Addl.

Primary Court Judge and Homagama Addl.
District Judge and Addl. Family Court
Judge.

20. Mr. A. M. I. S. Atthanayake Class II/Grade I 01.09.2008 Higurakgoda Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate,
Primary Court Judge, Polonnaruwa Addl.
Magistrate Addl. Juvenile Magistrate, Addl.
Primary Court Judge, Addl. District Judge
and Addl. Family Court Judge.

21. Mr. N. D. B. Gunarathna Class II/Grade I 01.09.2008 Embilipitiya Addl. Magistrate, Addl. Juvenile
Magistrate, Addl. Primary Court Judge,
Addl. District Judge, Addl. Family Court
Judge.

22. Mr. M. U. M. Irshadeen Class I/Grade II 01.09.2008 Gampaha Addl. Magistrate, Addl. Juvenile
Magistrate, Addl. Primary Court Judge,
Addl. District Judge, Addl. Family Court
Judge.

23. Ms. W. G. J. Wijesinghe Class II/Grade I 01.09.2008 Galle Addl. Magistrate, Addl. Juvenile
Magistrate, Addl. Primary Court Judge,
Addl. District Judge, Addl. Family Court
Judge.

24. Mr. B. D. R. S. Kumara Class II/Grade I 01.09.2008 Polonnaruwa Addl. District Judge, Addl.
Family Court Judge, Addl. Magistrate,
Addl. Juvenile Magistrate and Addl.
Primary Court Judge.

25. Mr. N. A. Weerasinghe Class II/Grade I 01.09.2008 Kandy Primary Court Judge, Addl.
Magistrate, Addl. Juvenile Magistrate,
Addl. District Judge and Addl. Family
Court Judge.

26. Mr. T. M. C. S. Gunasekara Class II/Grade I 01.09.2008 Monaragala District Judge, Family Court
Judge, Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate and
Primary Court Judge.

27. Mr. I. R. de Silva Class II/Grade I 01.09.2008 Wellawaya District Judge, Family Court
Judge, Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate and
Primary Court Judge.

28. Mr. H. S. Ponnapperuma Class II/Grade I 01.09.2008 Theldeniya Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate
and Primary Court Judge.

29. Mr. R. A. P. W. de Silva Class I/Grade I 01.09.2008 Mt. Laviniya District Judge, Family Court
Judge, Addl. Magistrate and Addl. Primary
Court Judge.
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Index Name Class and Grade Effective date of Court/Appointment
No. of the Officer in the Judicial the transfer

Officer post Appointment

30. Ms. D. W. W. M. R. C. P. Dela Class II/Grade I 01.09.2008 Warakapola Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate
and Primary Court Judge.

31. Mr. N. B. D. N. B. Balalle Class I/Grade II 01.09.2008 Colombo Addl. District Judge, Addl. Family
Court Judge, Addl. Magistrate and Addl.
Primary Court Judge.

32. Mr. G. A. D. Ganepola Class I/Grade I 01.09.2008 Nugegoda District Judge, Family Court
Judge, Addl. Magistrate and Addl. Primary
Court Judge.

33. Ms. N. K. D. K. I. Nanayakkara Class II/Grade I 01.09.2008 Colombo Addl. Magistrate, Addl. Primary
Court Judge, Addl. District Judge and Addl.
Family Court Judge.

34. Mrs. A. Abdeen Class II/Grade I 01.09.2008 Horana Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate,
Primary Court Judge, Addl. Distrcit Judge
and Addl. Family Court Judge.

35. Mr. M. W. J. K. Weeraman Class I/Grade II 01.09.2008 Badulla District Judge, Family Court Judge,
Addl. Magistrate, Addl. Juvenile Magistrate
and Addl. Primary Court Judge.

36. Mr. H. P. S. W. Abeysinghe Special Grade 01.09.2008 Elpitiya District Judge, Family Court Judge,
Addl. Magistrate, Addl. Juvenile Magistrate
and Addl. Primary Court Judge.

37. Mr. R. M. P. S. K. Rathnayaka Special Grade 01.09.2008 Kurunegala District Judge, Family Court
Judge, Addl. Magistrate, Addl. Juvenile
Magistrate and Addl. Primary Court Judge.

38. Mr. G. A. B. Pilapitiya Class I/Grade II 01.09.2008 Colombo Fort Magistrate, Primary Court
Judge, Colombo Addl. District Judge and
Addl. Family Court Judge.

39. Mr. E. A. K. D. Epitawala Class II/Grade I 01.09.2008 Awissawella Addl. District Judge, Addl.
Family Court Judge, Addl. Magistrate,
Addl. Juvenile Magistrate and Addl.
Primary Court Judge.

40. Mr. B. A. R. Somasinghe Class I/Grade II 01.09.2008 Moratuwa District Judge, Family Court
Judge, Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate and
Addl. Primary Court Judge.

41. Mrs. S. S. Alwis Special Grade 01.09.2008 Gampaha Addl. District Judge, Addl. Family
Court Judge, Addl. Magistrate, Addl.
Juvenile Magistrate and Addl. Primary
Court Judge.

42. Mrs. P. I. Ranasinghe Class I/Grade II 01.09.2008 Colombo Addl. District Judge, Addl. Family
Court Judge, Addl. Magistrate and Addl.
Primary Court Judge.

43. Ms. W. D. C. Wijebandara Class II/Grade I 01.09.2008 Embilipitiya Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate,
Primary Court Judge, Addl. District Judge
and Addl. Family Court Judge.
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Index Name Class and Grade Effective date of Court/Appointment
No. of the Officer in the Judicial the transfer

Officer post Appointment

44. Ms. S. I. Kalingawansa Class II/Grade I 01.09.2008 Moratuwa Addl. District Judge, Addl.
Family Court Judge, Addl. Magistrate,
Addl. Juvenile Magistrate and Addl.
Primary Court Judge.

45. Mr. W. A. C. Dep Class I/Grade II Immediate Puttalam District Judge, Family Court Judge,
effect Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate and

Primary Court Judge.

46. Mr. T. S. V. P. Gamage Class II/Grade I Immediate Kantale Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate and
effect Primary Court Judge.

47. Mr. S. S. K. Withana 03.11.2008 Kandy Primary Court Judge, Addl.
Magistrate, Addl. Juvenile Magistrate,
Addl. District Judge and Addl. Family
Court Judge (Trainee)

48. Mr. R. L. Godawela Immediate Wattala Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate,
effect Primary Court Judge and Negombo Addl.

District Judge and Addl. Family Court
Judge.

49. Mrs. G. P. S. Ranasinghe Immediate Colombo Addl. Magistrate (Motor
effect Traffic) and Addl. Primary Court Judge.

50. Mrs. P. Paranagamage Immediate Maligakanda Addl. Magistrate and Addl.
effect Primary Court Judge.

51. Mr. R. S. S. Sapuvida Class I/Grade II 01.01.2008 Kegalle District Judge, Family Court Judge,
Addl. Magistrate, Addl. Juvenile Magistrate
and Addl. Primary Court Judge.

52. Mr. H. P. N. R. Wimalasena Class II/Grade I 01.01.2008 Awissawella Magistrate, Juvenile Magistrate,
Primary Court Judge, Addl. District Judge
and Addl. Family Court Judge.

53. Mr. A. M. M. Sahabdeen ClassII/Grade I Immediate Baticaloa District Judge, Family Court Judge,
effect Addl. Magistrate, Addl. Juvenile Magistrate

and Addl. Primary Court Judge.

54. Mr. M. U. Gunawardana Immediate Kuliyapitiya District Judge, Family Court
effect Judge, Addl. Magistrate, Addl. Juvenile

Magistrate and Addl. Primary Court Judge.

55. Mr. Piyasena Panasinghe Special Grade Immediate Gampaha Addl. District Judge, Addl. Family
effect Court Judge, Addl. Magistrate, Addl.

Juvenile Magistrate and Addl. Primary
Court Judge.
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56. Mr. U. R. V. B. Ranatunga 03.11.2008 Colombo Addl. Magistrate, Addl. Primary
Court Judge, Addl. District Judge and Addl.
Family Court Judge.

As per the directions of the Judicial Service Commission,

P. W. D. C. JAYATHILAKE,
Secretary,

Judicial Service Commission.

Judicial Service Commission Secretariat,
Colombo 12.
09th June, 2009.

07-03

Index Name Class and Grade Effective date of Court/Appointment
No. of the Officer in the Judicial the transfer

Officer post Appointment

Other Appointments, &c.

No. 223 of 2009

I, V. Puththirasigamoney, Acting Minister of Justice and Law Reforms, by virtue of the powers vested in me by Section 45 (3) of the
Judicature Act, No. 02 of 1978, do hereby appoint the following Attorney-at-Law as Justices of the Pease and Unofficial Magistrates for
the relevant judicial Divisions.

V. PUTHTHIRASIGAMONEY,
Acting Minister of Justice

and Law Reforms.

Colombo 12.
Ministry of Justice and Law Reforms.
15th day of June, 2009.

Name Address Judicial Division

01. Mr. Kalubowilage Don Lal Chandramali, Vijitha Mawatha, Kaluthara
Chandrathilaka Nagoda, Kaluthara.

02. Mr. Channa Dammith 47/2, 3rd Lane, Buthgamuwa Road, Colombo
Bakmiwawa Rajagiriya.

03. Mr. Kamal Prasanna 368/10, Nagahawella Road, Kaduwela
Wijesiri Kotikawatta.

04. Mr. Sarala Chinthaka 33/1, Airport Road, Dawamottawa, Minuwangoda
Karunarathna Andiambalama

05. Mrs. Manikgama Arachchige No. 317, Nugawela Junction, Kaduwela
Dona Sandhya Rasanjalee Kotikawatta, Mulleriyawa
Dias Thalduwa New Town.

06. Mr. Mohamed Yacub Mohamed 63, Hulftsdrop Street, Colombo
Zadurdeen Colombo 12.
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07. Mr. Mohamed Ismail Bahrul 194, Hulftsdrop Street, Colombo
Maarieef Colombo 12.

08. Mr. Mulugunage Don Hemasiri No. 28/1, Galabadayawatta Matugama
Hemantha Samarasekara Road, Matugama.

09. Mrs. Kankanamge Anoma “Anushka”, Badugama, Matugama
Priyadarshani Siriweera Matugama.

07-84

Name Address Judicial Division

No. 224 of 2009

I, Veadivel Puththirasigamoney, Acting Minister of Justice and Law
Reforms, by virtue of powers vested in me by Section 45 (2) of the
Judicature Act, No. 02 of 1978 do hereby appoint;

01. Mr. MARIMUTHTHU WIJAYANADAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

02. Mr. SANMUGAPRAKASAN SUNDARALINGAM to be a Juctice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

03. Mr. SATHASIWAM THILAKAN to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

04. Mr. VINAYAGALINGAM ARUNCHAYAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;.

05. Mr. WIJESUNDARA MUDIYANSELAGE THILAKARATHNEBANDA

WIJAYASUNDARA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Kandy;

06. Mr. HUDIHIM MUDIYANSELAGE PALITHA BANDARA DEDUNUPITIYA

to be a Juctice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
07. Mr. DAMUNUPOLA PATHIRENNAHALAGE NIHAL DHARMASIRI to be

a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;
08. Mr. WEERAPPAN KANDASAMY to be a Juctice of the Peace for

the Whole Island;
09. Mr. FRANCIS ANTHONY JUDE PRADEEP KUMARA to be a Juctice

of the Peace for the Whole Island;
10. Mr. RANASINGHE ARACHCHIGE WASANTHA AMARASIRI to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;
11. Mr. ABEYWICKRAMA VIDANA GAMACHCHIGE HENDRIK to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;
12. Mr. MUNASINGHA ARACHCHIGE JAYATHISSA to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;
13. Mr. LIYANA ARACHCHIGE PIYASENA JAYASEKARA to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;
14. Mr. DON DAVITH RANAWEERA to be a Justice of the Peace for

the Judicial Zone of Matara;
15. Mr. CYRIL VILFRED GUNAWARDANE to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Judicial Zone of Galle;
16. Mr. MANAMPERI MUDIYANSELAGE WIJITHA MANAMPERI to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;
17. Mr. WIJESUNDARA MUDIYANSELAGE SASHSRITH MANJULA

WIJESUNDARA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone
of Colombo;

18. Mr. KANDAVITHANAGE MAHENDRA SANATHKUMARA PILANAGODA

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Avissawella;

19. Mr. DON AMARADASA KARAWITA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Avissawella;

20. Mr. SUDESH KUSUMENDRA DALUWATHTHA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

21. Mr. AKURUGODA GAMAGE KARUNASENA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

22. Mr. PRABA MANJU SRI DHARMARATHNE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

23. Mr. WASALA USLIYANAGE DON LASANTHA MANOJ PERERA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

24. Mr. BOPITIYA VITHARANAGE ROHAN PRADEEP VITHARANA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

25. Mr. UDENI PIYUMANTHA MAHAVITHANA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

26. Mr. PEDURUHEWA SAMAN KRISHANTHA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

27. Mr. DOREMURE GAMAGE SAMARASINGHE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

28. Mr. GALAPPATHTHIGE TITUS to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

29. Mr. GURUBEWILAGE AMARASENA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

30. Mr. DON ANANDA LAKSHMAN THILAKASIRI BALASOORIYA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

31. Mrs. WARNAVITHARANAGE CHAMILA SHIROMI FERNANDO to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

32. Mr. DON BASTIYANGE AMARASIRI RANAWEERA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

33. Mr. GAMLADDALAGE MIHIPAL ARJUNA MAHINKANDA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;

34. Mr. MOOKAPILLAI MUVENTHEN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

35. Mr. DEVARAJ SIVANANDAM to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Kandy;

36. Mr. GOVINDAN PARAMANANTHA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

37. Mr. SELLAIAH THURAIYAPPA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Kandy;

38. Mr. KADIRAWEL MAILWAGANAM to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

39. Mr. PONNUSAMY PRABAKARAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

40. Mr. DAYA BANDARA MAUSSAWA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Kandy;
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41. REV. MEEPANAWE SUGATAHDHAMMA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

42. Mrs. CHAMPA INDRANI THANAPATHI to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

43. Mr. SELLAPPERUMAGE CHARLES STANLEY FERNANDO AMARASEKARA

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;
44. Mr. NISHANTHA PRIYANATH DANTHANARAYANA to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;
45. Mr. PONWEERA ARACHCHIGE DON SHARMAN FEDRIK DEEPTHA

APPUHAMI to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of
Chilaw;

46. Mr. HARSHA DUMINDA WEERAKOON to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Chilaw;

47. Mr. PALASINGAM GHANAMOORTHI to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Negombo;

48. Mr. RAJAPAKSHA PATHIRAGE ASANGA SAMARASEKARA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Panadura;

49. Mr. PADMASIRI RANAWAKAARACHCHI to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Panadura;

50. Mr. DON ANTON PRIYANTHA DEMATAGODA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

51. Mrs. KUSUMAWATHIE MADARASINGHE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

52. Rev. GAMPAHA VIJITHANANDA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

53. Mr. WEERASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE WIJERATHNE to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

54. Mr. YAPA MUDIYANSELAGE PIYARATHNE YAPA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

55. Mr. ATHAPATHTHU MUDIYANSELAGE SUGATHADASA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

56. Mrs. MADDUMA PATABENDIGE RANJANIE DE SILVA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

57. Mr. W. M. W. WIJEKOON to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Badulla;

58. Mr. RAJAPAKSHA MUDIYANSELAGE ANULAWATHIE RAJAPAKSHA

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;
59. Mr. WELEKADE BARANIGE DHANAPALA to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
60. Mrs. ABEYKOON MUDIYANSELAGE KARUNAWATHIE to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;
61. Mr. WICKRAMASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE WIJEKOON BANDA to be

a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;
62. Mrs. RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE SUDARSHANIE to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;
63. Mr. GAM MAHELAGE GUNAPALA to be a Justice of the Peace for

the Judicial Zone of Badulla;
64. Mr. RAJAWAKA BANDARALAGE JAYARATHNA BANDARA to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;
65. Mr. DISANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE RAJITHA KOSALA to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;
66. Mr. GARDI ARACHCHIGE SARATH WEERASINGHE to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;
67. Mrs. RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE KUSUMAWATHIE to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;
68. Mr. RANASINGHE ARACHCHILAGE JOTHIPALA to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;
69. Mr. MOHAMAD MAKSUMEE DEEN  to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;

70. Mr. MAHAGAMA ARACHCHILAGE JAYASEKARA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

71. Mr. RAJU RAJENDRAN  to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole
Island;

72. Mr. SUBRAMANIUM PRABAKARAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

73. Rev. BADURDEEN MOHAMAD PAVUMI to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

74. Mr. ABEYSINGHA MUDIYANSELAGE JAYANTHA ABEYSINGHA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

75. Rev. MUHAMMADU USAN ABDUL LATHIF to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

76. Mr. PALIPODY LOHESWARAN to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

77. Mr. GOPAL KUMARAPILLAI CHANDRAKUMAR to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

78. Mr. JAYASEKARA LIYANA ARACHCHIGE SUDATH PRIYANKARA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

79. Mr. WEERANARAYANA SENEWIRATHNE SISIRA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Galle;

80. Mr. PRASANNA MENDIS KARUNARATHNE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;

81. Mr. NANAYAKKARAWASAM MAHA KAPUGE NANDASIRI to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;

82. Mrs. GHANAWATHIE AMARASINGHE DISANAYAKE to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

83. Mr. ARIYADASA KODITHUWAKKU ARACHCHIGE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

84. Mr. KANTHASAMY THIRUCHELVAM to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Batticaloa;

85. Mr. YOGANATHAN JANARTHANAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

86. Rev. GATABERIKANDE RATHNASIRI to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

87. Mr. WENGAPPULI ARACHCHIGE BANDUSENA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

88. Mr. LAKSHMAN RANJITH WIJESINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Negombo;

89. Mr. FRANCIS ROHAN SURAJMAL PIERIS GUNATHILAKE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

90. Mr. SUMATHIPALA EDIRIWICKRAMA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

91. Mr. CHAMIDU WIMON ABEYWICKRAMA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

92. Mr. GAMINI WIJITH HETTIARACHCHI to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Whole Island;

93. Mr. MARIYAMPILLE REJINOLD to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

94. Mr. INDUNIL VIRAJ PERAMUNA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Negombo;

95. Mr. KANCIYUS AMARATHUNGA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Negombo;

96. Mr. RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE SENAWIRATHNE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

97. Mr. THENNAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE SOMADASA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

98. Mr. NANAYAKKARA HADDAGODAGE UPALI SARATH YAPA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Panadura;
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99. Mr. MATHTHUMAGALA KANKANALAGE KARUNARATHNE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

100. Mr. LAKKANA AYODYA RAMANAYAKE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Negombo;

101. Mr. SULIMAN DAVUD MOHAMAD JEINUDEEN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

102. Mr. POLGAMPALA RALALAGE RASIKA MANOJ PRIYANKARA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;

103. Mr. PINNAPOLA APPUHAMILAGE PREMASIRI DHARMABANDU to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Panadura;

104. Mr. GALGAMUGE MICKEL KRISTY SILVA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Negombo;

105. Mr. ATHTHANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE GUNADASA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

106. Rev. BEMINIYANWILA WIBHAVI to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

107. Mr. GAMHEWAYALAGE JAYASENA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

108. Mr. RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE UPALI RATHNAYAKE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

109. Mr. KARIYAWASAM DON RANJITH PATHIRANA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

110. Mr. RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE UPUL KUMARA RATHNAYAKE

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;
111. Mr. GALHENAGE SUSANTHA MANOJ to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
112. Mr. MALA ARACHCHI KARUNASENA to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
113. Rev. HEELLE GHANANANDA to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Whole Island;
114. Mr. SITHAMPARAPILLAI NALLATHAMBY to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;
115. Mr. WANNIARACHCHI KANKANAMGE WILSON to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Whole Island;
116. Mr. PAKKEER MOHIDEEN NASRUDEEN to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
117. Mr. JAGODAGE WOLTER to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Judicial Zone of Galle;
118. Mr. BELLANAGE RANJITH PREMASIRI to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Judicial Zone of Galle;
119. Mrs. AMARA CHANDRANI MALLIYAWADU to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
120. Mr. SUSIRA PALITHA HERATH to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Judicial Zone of Kandy;
121. Mr. MIRISSE ARACHCHIGE THUSITH ROSHAN DE SILVA to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;
122. Mr. RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE TIKIRI BANDA RATHNAYAKE

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;
123. Mr. MAJID MOHOMAD MASEEL to be a Justice of the Peace for

the Judicial Zone of Badulla;
124. Mrs. D. M. EMILA WANASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for

the Judicial Zone of Kandy;
125. Mr. WARNAKULASOORIYA ALEX PRIYANTHA FERNANDO to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
126. Mr. RATHNASEKARA KURUPPU ARACHCHIGE GAMINI to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
127. Mr. MAGEDARA GAMAGE NIHAL RANJITH DASANAYAKE to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

128. Mr. LORENSU HEWAGE DHARMASIRI SHANTHILAL to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

129. Mr. DON WIPULA AMARASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

130. Mr. NALLATHAMBY NEDUNCHELIYAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

131. Mrs. MOHAMED CASEEM ABDUL KASIM to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

132. Mr. PUTHIRASIGAMONEY PARAMASINGAMONEY to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

133. Mr. SENAWIRATHNE THENNAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE SUNIL

THENNAKOON to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone
of Kandy;

134. Mr. MUHANDIRAM MUDIYANSELAGE PRIYALAL to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Puttalam;

135. Mr. ALIYAR ADAMBAWA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

136. Mr. RAMASAMY BALASEKARA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

137. Mrs. LEELA FERNANDO to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Colombo;

138. Mr. NEKETHH GEDARA ROOPASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

139. Mrs. EGODAHAGE MUDITHA EASHANI ALWIS MADANAYAKE to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

140. Mr. PULWANSHA YASARATHNE to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

141. Mr. OBADAGE KARUNADASA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Balapitiya;

142. Mr. HAMBANGE WEERASEKARA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

143. Mr. KODITHUWAKKU ARACHCHILLAYA WILFRED GAJANAYAKE to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

144. Mr. MIDALANA KATTADIGE GUNAWARDANE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

145. Mr. SURANJU HEWAGE LALITH SIRI KUMARA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;

146. Mr. S. B. EKANAYAKE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole
Island;

147. Mr. KUMARAGE PREMARATHNE to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

148. Mr. RAJAPAKSHA MUDIYANSELAGE LEELARATHNE to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

149. Mr. BALASEKARAN RUTHRA SEKARAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

150. Mrs. THOTAHEWARALALAGE PRINCY WINIFRED FELARIDA FERNANDO

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Panadura;
151. Mr. LAKMAL ERANDA RODRIGO to be a Justice of the Peace for

the Judicial Zone of Colombo;
152. Mr. LANKADIKARI MUDIYANSELAGE SINGHAHENA JAYASEKARA to

be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;
153. Mr. EARIWARA MAHA VITHARANAGE RANASINGHE to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;
154. Mr. BERAGAMA ARACHCHIGE GUNAWARDANE to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;
155. Mr. RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE PREMARATHNE to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;
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156. Mr. SAMSUDEEN THASTHAGEER to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

157. Mr. RAJAMANTHRIGE PIYAL MAHANAMA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

158. Mr. MERERAMBA GAMMACHARIGE DASAL DUMINDA

PREMATHILAKE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone
of Colombo;

159. Mr. SOORIYA ARACHCHILAGE ALAN  to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

160. Mr. ABEYWICKRAMAGE DAYARATHNA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

161. Mr. HIGGODA GAMAGE SIRISENA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Matara;

162. Mr. KANNANGODA ARACHCHIGE NANDASENA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

163. Mr. MATHARA BUWANAYAKALAGE GUNADASA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

164. Mr. LULINASENA LIYANAGE to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

165. Mr. KODITHUWAKKU ARACHCHIGE WIMALADASA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

166. Mr. JINADASA MADAMPEGE to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Badulla;

167. Mr. KIRIMETIYAWE RAJAGURU BANDARALAGE MADDUMABANDARA

ANDARAWEWA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone
of Anuradhapura;

168. Mr. DUMINDA DHAMMIKA MUNASINGHE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

169. Mr. RAMAN SUPPAN RAJENDRAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

170. Mrs. PUTHIRA SHERIFF SHAMILA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

171. Mr. MURUGAIAH SANMUGARAJA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

172. Mrs. WELU CHANDRASEGARAM to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

173. Mr. CHETTIAPILLAI THIRUKKONA PERUMAN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

174. Mr. THANGAWELU SESAIAH to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Kandy;

175. Mr. PERIYASAMIPILLAI LOGESWARAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

176. Mrs. VADIWEL SUBRAMANIUM THULSIRAJA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

177. Mr. IRUSHAPPAN RADHA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Kandy;

178. Mrs. UPASAKA GEDARA JAYAWATHIE to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

179. Mrs. WEERASOORIYA MUDIYANSELAGE SUMANALATHA

WEERASOORIYA  to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone
of Kandy;

180. Mrs. KATUWELA DAYANANDAGE THAMARA NANDANIE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

181. Mr. ABDUL RAUF MOHAMAD JIYAUL BUHARI to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

182. Mrs. HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE SOMALATHA HERATH to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

183. Mrs. PUSHPA CHANDRIKA KUMARAGAMAGE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

184. Mr. SAMARANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE DEEPTHI KUMARA

SAMARANAYAKE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Kandy;

185. Rev. RUPAHA ANURUDDA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Kandy;

186. Mr. HANDARAGAMA KANKANAMALAGE WASANTHA SAROJ

CHITHRARANJAN to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Kandy;

187. Mr. GALAUDAKANDA WATHUKARAGE SARATH PIYADASA

WICKRAMASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Rathnapura;

188. Mrs. PRANGIGE DISNA KANTHI PERERA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

189. Mr. WARNAKULASOORIYA JOHN BERKMON TRUDO MALHEL

FERNANDO to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of
Chilaw;

190. Mr. THANGAWELU JEYAKUMAR to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

191. Mr. DHANUSHKODY MADAVAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

192. Mr. MOHAMED SHIRASH SALI to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

193. Mr. KODIPPILI ARACHCHIGE PIYASENA KALUTARA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

194. Mrs. NANDANIE WIJETHUNGA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

195. Mr. NIMAL PADHIPPERUMA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

196. Mr. RANASIN KODITHUWAKKU JANAKA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

197. Mr. AMARADASA MEGODAWICKRAMA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

198. Mrs. PATHMA LALINI IHALAVITHANA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

199. Mr. SIRIWARDANE HANDUNNETHTHIGE ARIYARATHNE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

200. Mr. PUNCHIHEWAGE PIYASENA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

201. Mr. KORANELIS HEWA GANEGODA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

202. Mr. DAPANA DURAGE AKMON to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

203. Mr. MALLIKAGE WOLCY to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

204. Mr. NAMBADAWA VITHANAGE PREMADASA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

205. Mr. CYRIL EDMEND WIDISINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

206. Mr. ARACHCHIGE DON LEEL GAMINDA KALANSOORIYA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

207. Mr. MUHAMMADU AMANULLA ALIM MUHAMMADU NAIMULLA to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

208. Mr. HERATH MUDIYANSELA PAHALA GEDARA TIKIRI BANDA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

209. Ven. GATABERIKANDE RATHNASIRI THERO to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

210. Mr. GURUBEWILAGE AMARASENA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;
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211. Mr. UDUMULLE ARACHCHILLAGE MANAWASINGHE RANJITH

UDUMULLA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
212. Ven. ALAWWE GHANAWASA THERO to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
213. Mr. ELAWELLE GEDARA DINGIRIBANDA to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Judicial Zone of Polonnaruwa;
214. Mr. ANGODA BULUKUMBUREGEDARA GUNARATHNE to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Polonnaruwa;
215. Mrs. BOPITITHENNE GEDARA AJANTHA SRIYANI  to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Polonnaruwa;
216. Mr. WEDARALALEGEDARA THILAKARATHNE to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Judicial Zone of Polonnaruwa;
217. Mr. MAPA RALALAGE CHANDRAPALA to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Judicial Zone of Polonnaruwa;
218. Mrs. KADURUWELA MUDIYANSELAGE LEELAWATHIE to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Polonnaruwa;
219. Mr. MANIK RALAGE MUDALIHAMIGE WIJERATHNE to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Polonnaruwa;
220. Mr. JUSTIN BARESKU to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial

Zone of Galle;
221. Mr. MENIKPURA DEWAGE DHARMASENA to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;
222. Mr. HANDAPANGODA MUDALIGE ANURA HANDAPANGODA to be

a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Avissawella;
223. Mr. MATHMALUWE WIJAYARAJA MUDIYANSELAGE TIKIRI BANDARA

MATHMALUWE WIJAYARAJA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Kandy;

224. Mr. BASTIYAN KORALALAGE OGASTUS DICKSON KUMARA RUDRIGO

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Government Notifications

225. Mr. ALUTHGEDARA DASANAYAKE to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

226. Mr. RANAWAKA ARACHCHIGE ANTONY ALWIS to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

227. Mr. ILESINGHE PIYASENA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

228. Mrs. THILAKAMUNI LUSIDA AYRIN HELAN SILVA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

229. Mr. RANATHUNGAGE NIMAL KARUNATHILAKE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

230. Mr. LIYANAARACHCHILALAGE WIJESINGHE LIYANAARACHCHI to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

231. Mr. KONGANIGE EMMANUWEL LAKMAL THUSHARA ANTHONY

SILVA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
232. Mr. WALAKULU ARACHCHIGE WIMALASENA GUNATHILAKE to be

a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
233. Mr. MUHAMMADU AMANULLA ALIM MUHAMMADU NAIMULLA to

be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;
234. Mr. LIYANA PATHIRANNEHALAGE JAYASINGHE to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Whole Island;

As Justice of the Peace.

VADIVEL PUTHTHIRASIGAMONY,
Acting Minister of Justice

and Law Reforms.

Ministry of Justice and Law Reforms.
16th June, 2009

07-72

REGISTRATION  OF  PLACE  OF  WORSHIP  FOR  SOLEMNIZATION  OF  MARRIAGES

IN pursuance of the provisions of section 10 of the Marriage Registration Ordinance Cap. 112, I Ekanayake Mudiyanselage Gunasekara
Registrar General of Sri Lanka, do hereby certify that the undermentioned building used as a place of public christian worship, has been
duly registered for the solemnization of marriage therein.

Number Date of Description Situation Minister of Religious
Registration Proprietor Denomination

or Trustee on whose
behalf the building in

Registered

1417 2009.02.11 Infant Jesus Niwandama Rev. Fr. Francis Roman
Church Ja-Ela Fonseka Chathelic

E. M. GUNASEKARA,
Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
Battaramulla.

07-47
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ESALA     FESTIVEL    OF     KAMBURUPITIYA—
SAPUGODA

The Pilgrimages Ordinance (Chapter 175)

IN terms of regulations framed under the Pilgrimages Ordinance
(Chapter 175) and Published in the Gazette of the Democratic
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka, No. 308 of 27th July, 1984, it is
hereby notified that annual festival in respect of 2009, of the
Kamburupitiya Ilangangoda Purana Viharaya (Sapugoda
Vidyaniketha Pirivena) in Matara District, Southern Province,
Commence on the 06th Monday of July, 2009 and will be continued
until 14th Tuesday of July, 2009.

MAHESH KARUNANAYAKA,
Divisional Secretary,

Kamburupitiya.

Divisional Secretariat,
Kamburupitiya,
10th June, 2009.

07-10

SRI     SITHRAVELAYUTHA      SWAMI     KOVIL
ANNUAL       FESTIVAL—2009

Divisional Secretariat of Thirukkovil Division in Ampara
District

IT is hereby notified for the information of the pilgrims the attended
the above festival and other concerned that the above festival

MATARA     BINARA     MAHA     PERAHARA

The Pilgrimages Ordinance (Chapter 175)

IT is hereby notified under Section 10th of the regulations published
in the Sri Lankan Government Gazette No. 11959 issued on 20th
November, 1959 under pilgrimage (Chapter 175)  Ordinance that the
Binara Maha Perahara conducted in the District of Matara of the
Southern Province, will be held on 04th of September, 2009.

THUSITHA P. WANIGASINGHE,
Divisional Secretary,

Matara.

Divisional Secretariat,
Matara,
16th June, 2009.

07-157

commences 04.07.2009 and terminates on 21.07.2008 with water
cutting ceremony.

The attention of the pilgrims who attend the festival and others
concerned is drawn to standing regulations published in the
Government Gazette No. 10247 dated 11th May, 1951 which will
be in force during the duration of the above festival.

The camp area of the above festival has been enlarges as follows.

North by : Temple road, Thirukkovil;
East by : Fisheries road, Thirukkovil;
South by : Beach road, Thirukkovil;
West by : Main road, Thirukkovil.

V. ALAGARATHNAM,
Divisional Secretary,

Thirukkovil.

Divisional Secretariat,
Thirukkovil.
01st June, 2009.

07-158

ESALA   FESTIVAL OF  RUHUNU   MAHA
KATARAGAMA   DEVALE

Pilgrimages Ordinance  (Chapter 175)

IT is hereby notified for information of the general public that the
above festival will commence on the 22nd July, 2009 and terminate
on 06th August, 2009.

The general public are informed that the regulations published in
the following Gazette notifications, in terms of the provisions  of  the
Pilgrimages Ordinance, shall be in force within the duration of the
fertival.

Government Gazette  No.9859 of 30.04.1948
Government Gazette No. 10000 of 22.07.1949
Government  Gazette No. 11255 of 07.02.1958
Governement  Gazette No. 12508 of 07.07.1961
Government  Gazette No. 12947 of 02.03.1962

ROHANA KEERTHI DISSANAYAKE,
District Secretary,

Monaragala.

District Secretariat,
Monaragala.
16th June, 2009.

07-124/1
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 ESALA     FESTIVAL   OF    RUHUNU    MAHA
KATARAGAMA     DEVALE—2009

Pilgrimages Ordinance  (Chapter 175)

ATTENTION of the General Public is invited to regulations relating
to pilgrimages published in Gazette No. 9859 dated 30.04.1948, No.
10000 dated 22.07.1949, No. 11255 dated 07.02.1958, No. 12508
dated 07.07.1961, No. 12947 dated 02.03.1962. I hereby notify the
following particulars relating to those regulations.

01. Camp area:

“Camp area” means (a) the area within a radius of a mile from
the ford of the Manik Ganga at Kataragama and (b) the area
within a radius of a quarter mile from the Pullayar Kovil at Sella
Kataragama.

02. Construction of Buildings:

No person shall construct any building or boutique whether
permanent or temporary within the camp area during the
period of 22nd July, 2009 to 06th August, 2009 without a
written permission obtained from any other authorized officer.

03. Beggars:

No person shall solicit alms within the camp area except in the
beggar hut constructed near the second bridge over the Menik
Ganga or within a distance of five yards from there and no
person shall distribute any alms to beggars within the camp
area except at the aforesaid places.

04. Bathing and washing:

No person shall bath or wash cloths or animals within the area
of 3 miles upward the Menik Ganga extending from the place
of pumping water through the Kataragama Water Supply
Scheme.

05. Vehicles:

5.1 No person shall enter any motor vehicle, bicycle, bullock
cart or any other vehicle to the sacred area (Eastern part
of Menik Ganga) without a permit issued by me or any
other authorized officer.

5.2 No person shall park any vehicle within the camp area
except within the areas reserve for parking vehicles in the
New Town.

06. Barber Saloons:

No person shall establish any barber saloon within the camp
area except the places reserved for the purpose.

07. Kavadi Kada:

No person shall establish any Kavadi Kada without a permit
issued by me or any other authorized officer.

08. Marketing:

8.1 Hawkers are not allowed to sell anything within the scared
area, pilgrims rest area, bus stand and on or near foot
bridges No. 01 and No. 02.

8.2 No person shall sell Thinnoru, Ice-cream, Pooja Bhanda,
Pooja Trays, Food items or any other commodities outside
the areas reserved for that purpose.

8.3 No person shall establish or maintain any sale outlet
within tha sacred area except selling of flowers within the
sheds already constructed on either sides of the road
leading to Kirivehera.

8.4 Every building and every boutique shall have a dustbin and
all refuses should be deposited therein.

8.5 All processed foods exposed for sale should be kept in
boxes with covers so as to protect them from files.

ROHANA KEERTHI DISSANAYAKE,
District Secretary,

Monaragala.

District Secretariat,
Monaragala.
16th June, 2009.

07-124/2

Revenue and Expenditure Returns
UVA  WELLASSA  UNIVERSITY

1.5 Financial Report 2006

15.1 Balance Sheet :

Table B: Balance Sheet As at 31st December, 2006

Note 2006 2005
(Rs.) (Rs.)

Assets
Non Current Assets
Land and Buildings 11,695,906.50 11,695,906.50
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Furniture and Office Equipment :

Balance - 01.01.2006 1,235,898.75
Add : Additions 1 14,837,694.22

16,073,592.97
Less : Depreciation (208,079.75) 15,865,513.22 1,235,898.75
Laboratory Equipment 2 2,296,978.14
Library Books and Periodical 2 6,021,139.45
Cloaks 2 157,700.00
Work in progress and Advances 3 394,723,753.58 162,380,000.00
Capital Advance - MIS 736,000.00
Current Assets 4 3,588,934.87 405,201.37

435,085,925.76 175,717,006.62
Equity & Liabilities
Capital Grant Received 5 437,000,000.00 180,000,000.00
General Reserve (4,282,993.38) (4,282,993.38)
Income & Expenditure A/c (994,760.16)
Current Liabilities 6 3,363,679.30

––––––––––––– ––––––––––––
435,085,925.76 175,717,006.62
––––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––––

C. EMBULDENIYA, N. DIYABEDANAGE, N. GALLAGE,
Vice Chancellor. Registrar. Acting Bursar.

15.2 Income and Expenditure Account for the Year

Table 9 : Income and Expenditure Account for the Year as at 31st December, 2006

2006 2005
Rs. Rs.

Revenue :
1. Government Grant 35,600,000.00

(a) Mahapola/Bursary 1,072,000.00
Examination Fees 951,950.00 558,750.00
Registration Fees 303,600.00
Miscellaneous Receipts 356,200.00
Interest on loan 4,173.00

38,287,923.00 558,750.00

Expenditure :
Personal Emoluments 14,183,393.50 368,333.00
Travelling 133,264.27 58,799.21
Supplies 3,848,264.94 37,726.00
Maintenance 11,370.00
Contractual Services 18,003,647.65 4,237,464.32
Others 1,169,421.05 26,746.00
Bursaries and Mahapola 1,072,000.00
Depreciation 208,079.75
Gratuity 653,242.00

39,282,683.16 4,729,068.53

Excess of expenditure over income (994,760.16) (4,172,318.53)
Adjustment in respect of past year (110,674.85)

––––––––––––– ––––––––––––
Balance C/F to Balance Sheet (994,760.16) (4,282,993.38)

––––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Note Rs. 2006 (Rs.) 2005 (Rs.)
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15.3  Cash Flow Statements

Table 10 : Cash Flow Statements as at 31st December 2006

Rs. 2006 2005
Rs. Rs.

Income and Expenditure A/C: (994,760.16) (4,282,993.38)

Adjusment for
Accrual 2,481,937.30
Gratuity 653,242.00
Depreciation 208,079.75 3,343,259.05

2,348,498.89
Current Assets 228,500.00
Current Liabilities (3,173,558.63) (2,945,058.63)

(Net)
Net Cash Flow (596,559.74)
Government grant 257,000,000.00 257,000,000.00 180,000,000.00

(Capital Expenditure)
Acquisition of Fixed Assets 23,313,511.81 (12,931,805.25)

Work in Progress 232,343,753.58 (162,380,000.00)

Capital Advance 736,000.00 256,393,265.39 (256,393,265.39)
–––––––––––––– –––––––––––––

Cash & Cash Equivalents 10,174.87 405,201.37
–––––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––––

Notes to the Financial Statements :

01. Significant Accounting Policies :

1.1 General

The financial statements of the Uva-Wellassa University have been prepared on the historical basis in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent basis and in conformity with the Sri Lanka Accounting standards.

02. Assets and the Basis of their Value :

Depreciation of Non Current Assets

Depreciation is not charged in the year of purchase whilst a full year’s depreciation is charged in the year of disposal

The annual rate of depreciation is as follows :

Furniture and Office Equipment - 20%

03. 3.1 Capital work in progress represents the cost of civil construction work not completed.

04. 4.1 All known liabilities have been accounted for in preparing the financial statements.

4.2 Provision for gratuity
Provision for gratuity was made in accordance with Gratuity Act, No. 12 of 1983 and SLAS 16. The gratuity liability is not
externally funded nor actuarially valued.

05. Revenue recognition :

(a) The Examination fees from students are accounted on receipt basis.
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15.4 Expenditure Summary - 2006

OBJ Object Title 2006 Total 2005 Total
Code Rs. Cts. Rs.Cts.

Personal Emoluments :
Salaries & Wages 10,853,407.50 368,333.00
U.P.F./E.T.F./Pension 1,401,539.00 –
Allowance 1,928,447.00 –
Overtime/Holiday payments

14,183,393.50 368,333.00

Travelling Expenses
01-01-0501 Travelling & Subsistence - Domestic 133,264.27 58,799.21

133,264.27 58,799.21
Supplies

01-01-0601 Stationery & Office requisites 1,053,207.31 26,325.00
01-01-0602 Fuel & Lubricant 390,830.25 –
01-01-0606 Medical Supplies 8,456.04 –
01.01.0607 Other Supplies 1,186,739.75 11,401.00
05-01-0607 Other Supplies 69,198.00 –
01-05-0602 Fuel & Lubricant - Transport 1,139,833.59 –

3,848,264.94 37,726.00

Maintenance Expenditure
01-01-0702 Maintenance Plant, Machinery & equipment 9,700.00 –
01-01-0703 Maintenance Building & Structures 1,670.00 –

11,370.00 –

Contractual Service
01-01-0801 Transport 102,986.28 628,201.25
01-01-0802 Telecommunication 1,087,452.19 72,134.76
01-01-0803 Postal Charges 31,289.00 –
01-01-0807 Cleaning Services 1,071,454.60 13,475.00
01-01-0808 Rent & Hire charges 313,980.00 –
01-01-0808 B House Rent 2,897,000.00 –
01-01-0808 C Computers 1,371,839.00 –
01-01-0810 Printing & Advertising etc. 1,043,946.75 1,110,850.50
01-01-0811 Others 334,202.50 1,976,272.76
01-04-0805 Security Services - Admin & Others 2,416,709.23 362,684.71
01-05-0808 A Rent & Hire charges 3,117,046.77 37,750.00
05-02-0804 Electricity 398,863.12 36,095.34
05-03-0806 Water 347,532.90 –
08-01-0802 Hostel-Telecommunication 10,820.50 –
08-01-0804 Hostel-Electricity 99,115.20 –
08-01-0805 Hostel-Security Services 423,725.44 –
08-01-0806 Hostel-Water 172,332.51 –
08-01-2807 Hostel-Cleaning services 916,175.74 –
08-01-0808 B Hostel-Rent & Hire charges 1,041,500.00 –
08-01-0805 Security Services 805,675.92 –

–––––––––––– ––––––––––––
18,003,647.65 4,237,464.32

–––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Other Recurrent Expenditure

01-01-0902 Special service - council & committees 19,800.00 –
01-01-0904 Workshops, seminars 22,500.00 –
01-01-0906 Staff development – –
01-01-0909 Entertainment expenses 481,622.80 1,746.00
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01-01-0912 Contribution & Membership fees 63,900.00 25,000.00
01-01-0915 Other-Newspapers, Magazines etc. 87,344.50 –
02-17-0914 Exam Expenses 494,253.75 –

1,169,421.05 26,746.00

Bursaries & Mahapola 1,072,000.00 –
Depreciation Provision 208,079.75 –
Gratuity Provision 653,242.00 –

–––––––––––– ––––––––––––
Total 39,282,683.16 4,729,068.53

–––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––––

My No. UV/BD/B/D Univer/2007/40 30th May 2008
Auditor General’s Department

The Vice Chancellor,
Uva Wellassa University.

Report of the Auditor General on the financial statements of the Uva Wellassa University for the year ended 31 December
2006 in terms of Section 108(2) of the Universities Act No. 16 of 1978 and Section 13(7) (a) of the Finance Act No. 38 of 1971

THE audit of financial statements of Uva Wellassa University for the year ended 31st December, 2006 was carried out under my direction
in pursuance of provisions in Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with
Sections 108(1) and 111 of the Universities Act No. 16 of 1978 and Sub-sections (3), (4) and (7) of Section 13 of the Finance Act,
No. 38 of 1971. This report is issued in terms of Section 108(2) of the Universities Act and Section 13(7)(a) of the Finance Act.

1.2 Scope of Audit :

Audit opinion, comments and findings in this report are based on a review of the financial statements presented to audit and
substantive tests of samples of transactions. The scope and extent of such review and tests were such as to enable as wide an audit
coverage as possible within the limitations of staff. Other resources and time available to me. The audit was carried out in accordance
with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, methods and practices to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatements. The audit included examination of evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in financial
statements and assessment of accounting principles and significant estimates and judgements made in the preparation of financial
statements, evaluation of their overall presentation and determining whether accounting policies adapted were appropriate, consis-
tently applied and adequately disclosed. Sub-sections (3) and (4) of Section 13 of the Finance Act No. 38 of 1971 give discretionary
powers to the Auditor General to determine the scope and extent of the audit.

2. Financial Statements :

2.1 Opinion :

So far as appears from my examination and to the best of my information and according the explanations given to me, I am of opinion,
that the University of Uva Wellassa had maintained proper books of account for the year ended 31st December, 2006 and except for
the effects on the financial statements of the matters referred to in paragraph 2.2 of this report, the financial statements which are in
agreement with the said books have been prepared and presented in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and the stated
accounting policies and the notes (from note 1 to 5) to the financial statements and give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the University of Uva Wellassa as at 31st December 2006 and the financial results of the operations and the cash flows for the year
then ended.

2.2 Comments on the Financial Statements :

2.2.1 Accounting Policies :

Following Observations are made.

OBJ Object Title 2006 Total 2005 Total
Code Rs. C. Rs. C.
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(a) Method of valuation of closing stocks and policies regarding stocks had not been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by SLAS 5.

(b) Accounting policies with regard to the accounting of government grant for capital and revenue amounting to Rs.
292,600,000 had not been disclosed as required by SLAS 24.

2.2.2. Accounting Deficiencies :

The following accounting deficiencies are observed in audit.

(i) A sum of Rs. 22,83,453 being recurrent payments made in respect of the year under review had not been brought to
financial statements.

(ii) A sum of Rs. 327,842 being recurrent payments made in respect of prior perioed had been brought to the financial
statements of the year under review.

(iii) A sum of Rs. 10,00,000 of capital grant had not been brought to the financial statements for the year under reveiw.

(iv) Depreciation had not been provided in respect of buildings amounting to Rs. 11,959,906 and laboratory equipment
amounting to Rs. 2,296,978.

(v) A physical verification of stores had not been carried out and the value of the closing stocks based on the verification had
not been shown in the financial statements.

2.2.3 Lack of Evidence for Audit :

(i) the following items in the accounts could not be satisfactorily  vouched in audit in the absence evidence indicated against
each item.

Item Value Evidence not made
available

Rs.

(a) Capital grant 1,800,000.00 Details of the allocation

(b) furniture and 16,073,593 (i) Schedules
Office Equipment (ii) Board of survey reports

(c) Library books and 6,021,139 (i) Schedules
Periodicals (ii) Board of survey reports

(d) Cloaks 157,700 (i) Schedules
(ii) G.R.N.

(iii) Board of survey reports

(e) Deposits 215,000 (i) Deposit ledger
(ii) Schedules

(f) Current Assets 3,588,935 (i) Schedules
(ii) Ledger accounts

(g) work in progress 394,723,753 Details of Constructions
and advances

(ii) A General ledger had not been maintained by the University for year under review.

(iii) Credit Control accounts had not been maintained by the University.

2.2.4 Non-Compliance with Laws, Rules, Regulations etc. :

The following instances of non-compliance were observed in audit.
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Referene to Laws, Rules, Particulars
Regulations etc.

(a) Finance Act No. 38 of 1971 Draft annual report of the University had not
Section 14(I) been rendered for audit.

(b) Financial Regulations of the
Democratic Socialist Republic
of Sri Lanka

(i) No. 135, 136, 137 and 138 Authority for financial function had not been delegated for the year
under review.

(ii) No. 756 A Board of Survey had not been carried out for inventories and fixed
assets.

(iii) No. 1646 Daily running charts of the vehicles had not been furnished to the
Auditor General

(c) Terasury circular No. 842 of 19 December, A Fixed assets register had not been maintained.
1978 and University Grants Commission
circular No. 48 of 13 November, 1979.

(d) Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka Procurement procedure had not been followed for  purchasing  and
Procurement Guidelines Circular No. 08 of obtaining security services for Rs. 12,796,459.
25 January, 2006.

3. Financial and Operating Review :

3.1 Financial Results :

According to the financial statements presented, the working of the University for the year under review had resulted in a dificit of  Rs.
994,760 after taking into accounts the government grant of Rs. 35,600,000 reveived for recurrent expenditure for the year under review
as compared with the corresponding deficit of Rs. 4.282,993 for the pervious year.

3.2 Cost per Students :

A Summary of average expenditure per student calculated on the basis of number of Students registered and total expenditure is given
below.

Year No. of students Total expenditure Average
registered (Capital and recurrent) Expenditure

Per student
Rs. Rs.

2006 167 295,675,948 1,770,515

3.3 Budgetary Control and Corporate Plan :

A budget and an action plan for the year under review and a corporate plan had not been prepared to facilitate comparison of the
functions of the University with the actuals with a view to ascertaining the effectiveness of it’s operations.

4. Systems and Controls :

Special attention is needed in respect of the following areas of control.
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(i) Fixed Assets
(ii) Accounting

(iii) Budget
(iv) Purchasing procedure
(v) Stores

(vi) Internal Control

S. SWARNAJOTHI,
Auditor General.

iii. Financial Statement for the year ended 31st December, 2007 of Uva Wellassa University and

iv. Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st December, 2007 in all three languages.

15. Financial Report.

15.1 Accounting Policies :

Basis of Accounting.-

The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and the accounting standards
laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. These Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with the historical
cost convention where appropriate accounting policies are disclosed in succeeding notes.

Comparative figures.-

Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to the changes in presentation in the current financial year and/or described
by a narration.

15.2 Property, Plant and Equipment :

Land value indicates the payment of compensation to industrialists those who occupied the premises as the final acquisition of
land has not been completed yet. Action will be taken to get the land valued only after taking over of land from the Ministry of Higher
Education. Capital work in progress represents the cost of civil construction work not completed.

Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method on a consistent basis over the period appropriate to the estimated lives of different type of assets as follows :

Furniture and Office Equipment 20%
Computers 25%
Machinary and Laboratory Equipment 10%
Library Books 10%
Sports and Other Assets 10%

No depreciation is provided in the year of acquisition and full year’s depreciation is provided in the year of disposal.

Inventories.-

Laboratory Consumables are indicated as Inventories and valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories
is valued on first-in, first out (FIFO) basis.

Receivables.-

Receivables are stated at the estimated realizable value.
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15.3 Liabilities & Provisions.-

Retirement benefits :-

In terms of Gratuity Act, No. 12 of 1983 the liability to an employee arises only upon completion of 5 years of continued service.
To meet the liability a provision is made, equivalent to half a month salary based on the last month of the financial year for all employees
who have completed five years of service.

Accounts payable :

Payables are stated at costs.

15.4 Income & Expenditure :

Revenue recognition :

Revenue is recognized on accrual basis.

Amortization of Grants :

Grants that relate to capital expenditure are treated as deferred income which is then credited to income and expenditure account
and loss over the related assets useful life.

Expenditure recognition :

All expenditure incurred in maintaining the University has been recognized on accrual basis and charged to revenue in ascretaining
the income over expenditure.

Cash flow statement :

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the indirect method. For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and
Cash Equivalents consist of current accounts balances held at banks.

15.5 Performance - Recurrent Expenditure :

2005 2006 2007 Change
with

previous
Rs. Rs. Rs. Year %

Personal Emoluments 368,333 14,183,394 25,833,761 79%
Other Recurrent Expenses 4,360,736 24,027,290 45,427,772 88%
Student Financial Assistant - 1,072,000 3,114,200 190%

––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Total 4,729,069 39,282,684 74,375,733 90%

––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––

15.6 Position – Capital Expenditure :

2005 2006 2007 Total assets as
Rs. Rs. Rs. at 31.12.2007

Building Construction Project 162,380,000 232,343,754 289,838,997 684,562,750
Acquisition Furniture, Machinery, Equipment and Books 12,931,805 23,313,511 51,678,394 87,923,711

––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
Total 175,311,805 255,657,265 341,517,391 772,486,461

––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––
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15.7 Approved and Released Allocation :

Category  2006 2007
Expenditure

Approved Released % Approved Released %

Recurrent 50,250,000 35,600,000 71 72,748,000 65,800,000 90

Capital 289,000,000 257,000,000 89 402,600.00 313,500,000 78
–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––––

Total 339,250,000 292,600,000 86 475,348,000 379,300,000 80
–––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––– –––––––––––

07-90/1

UVA  WELLASSA  UNIVERSITY

Financial  Report 2007

Uva Wellassa University Balance Sheet As at December 31st, 2007

2007 2006
Rs.Cts Rs. Cts.

15.8 Balance Sheet :

Assets :
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 768,121,037.03 430,760,990.89

Current Assets :
Inventories 12,777,102.91
Staff Debtors 1,325,220.00 278,260.00
Debtors and Receivables 2,963,650.00 2,409,500.00
Pre-payments 1,960,500.00 891,000.00
Advances 736,000.00 736,000.00

Bank Balances 311,646.99 10,174.87
20,074,119.90 4,324,934.87
––––––––––– –––––––––––

Total Assets 788,195,156.93 435,085,925.76
––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––

Funds and Liabilities :

General Reserve (4,889,107.81)
Special Funds 13,47,103.40 (5,277,753.54)

(3,542,004.41) (5,277,753.54)

Non Current Liabilities :
Deferred Income 746,134,575.74 437,000,000.00
Provision for Gratuity 913,162.50 653,242.00

747,047,738.24 437,653,242.00
Current Liabilities :
Sundry Creditors 43,362,618.10 228,500.00
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Accrued expenses 1,326,805.00 2,481,937.30

44,689,423.10 2,710,437.30
–––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Total Funds and Liabilities 788,195,156.93 435,085,925.76
–––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––––

C. EMBULDENIYA, N. DIYABEDANAGE, K. GAMINI LIYANAGE,

Vice Chancellor. Registrar. Acting.  Bursar.

15.9  Income and Expenditure Statement :

Uva Wellassa University

 Income & Expenditure Statement as at December 31st, 2007

2007 2006

Rs. Rs.

Income :

Recurrent Grant 65,800,000.00 35,600,000.00

Bursary and Mahapola Grants 3,114,200.00 1,072,000.00

Other Income 1,484,754.69 1,615,923.00

Capital Grants Amortized 4,157,344.51 –
–––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Total Income 74,556,299.20 38,287,923.00
–––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Expenses :

Personal emoluments 25,833,761.07 14,183,393.50

Travelling Expenses 156,491.00 133,264.27

Supplies 4,837,728.02 3,848,264.94

Maintenance 591,277.06 11,370.00

Contractual Expenditure 33,240,378.58 18,003,647.65

Other Recurrent Expenses 2,184,632.48 1,169,421.05

Bursary and Mahapola Payments 3,114,200.00 1,072,000.00

Gratuity 259,920.50 653,242.00

Depreciation 4,157,344.51 208,079.75
––––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Total Expenses 74,375,733.22 39,282,683.16
–––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Surplus/(Deficit) 180,565.98 (994,760.16)
–––––––––––– ––––––––––––

2007 2006
Rs. Rs.
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15.10 Cash Flow Statement :

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended December 31st, 2007

2007 2006
Rs. Rs.

Cash flows from operating activities :

Deficit/surplus from ordinary activities 180,566 (994,760)

Non-Cash Movements

Capital Grants Amortized (4,157,345) -
Depreciation 4,157,345 208,080
Gratuity Provision 259,921 653,242

Operating Profit Before Changes in W/C 440,486 (133,438)

(Increase)/Decrease in Stocks (12,777,103)

(Increase)/Decrease in Staff Debtors (1,046,960) (278,260)

(Increase)/Decrease in Debtors and Receivables (554,150) (2,409,500)

(Increase)/Decrease in Pre-payments (1,069,500) (891,000)

(Increase)/Decrease in  Advance - (736,000)

Increase/(Decrease) in  Sundry Creditors 43,134,118 228,500

Increase/(Decrease) in Accrued expensed (1,155,132) 2,481,937

Net cash flows from operating activities 26,971,759 (1,737,761)

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of Fixed Assets (341,517,391) (255,657,265)

Net cash flows from investing activities (341,517,391) (255,657,265)

Cash flows from financing activities

Capital Grant Received 313,500,000 257,000,000
Other Funds 1,347,103 -

Net cash flow from financing activities 314,847,103 257,000,000

Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 301,472 (395,026)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 10,175 405,201

––––––––––– ––––––––––
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 311,647 10,175

––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––
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15.12 Operating Expenses

15.11 Operating Income



956 I fldgi : (I) fPoh ----- YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ----- 2009'07'03
PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 03.07.2009

From the Phase II work 02 Nos. of hostel blocks, restaurant
and other infrastructure have been completed and work on
additional 02 Nos. of hostel blocks are expected to be com-
pleted toward mid 2008.

Cabinet approved original TEC for this project was
Rs. 1,000 Mn. which include Rs 350Mn. for Phase 1 and
Rs. 650 Mn. for Phase II.

Work in Phase – I which comprised of 03 Nos. of Lecture
halls and Laboratories and the Administration block were
completed as planned.
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16. Report of the Auditor General

Report of the Auditor General on the financial statements of the Uva Wellassa University for the year ended 31 December 2007
in terms of Section 108(2) of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 and Section 13(7) (a) of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971

The audit of financial statements of Uva Wellassa University for the year ended 31 December 2007 was carried out under my direction
in pursuance of provisions in Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with
Sections 108(1) and 111 of the Universities Act No. 16 of 1978 and Sub-sections (3), (4) and (7) of Section 13 of the Finance Act, No. 38
of 1971. This report is issued in terms of Section 108(2) of the Universities Act and Section 13(7)(a) of the Finance, Act.

1.2 Responsibility of the Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards and Generally Accepted Accounting principles. This responsibility includes, designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting polices and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

1.3 Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. Audit opinion, comments and findings
in this report are based on a review of the financial statements presented to audit and substantive tests of samples of transactions.
The scope and extent of such review and tests were such as to enable as wide an audit coverage as possible within the limitations
of staff, other resources and time available to me. The audit was carried out in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements. The audit includes examination on
a test basis of evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in financial statements and assessment of accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by the management in the preparation of financial statements as well as evaluating their overall
presentation. I have obtained sufficient information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purpose of my audit. I therefore believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion. Sub-sections (3) and (4)
of Section 13 of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971 give discretionary powers to the Auditor General to determine the scope and extent
of the audit.

2. Financial Statements :

2.1 Opinion

So far as appears from my examination and to the best of my information and according the explanations given to me, I am of opinion,
that the Uva Wellassa University had maintained proper accounting records for the year ended 31 December 2007 and except for
the effects on the financial statements of the matters referred to in paragraph 2.2 of this report, the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and Generally Accepted Accounting principles give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Uva Wellassa University as at 31 December 2007 and the financial results of its operations and cash flows
for the year then ended.

2.2 Comments on Financial Statements :

2.2.1 Sri Lanka Accounting Standards  :

The following observations are made.

(a) Accounting policies with regard to the accounting of government grant for capital and recurrent expenditure amounting
to Rs. 96,800,000 had not been disclosed as required by SLAS 24.
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(b) Accounting policies with regard to the hiring of computers amounting to Rs. 2,648,449 has not been disclosed as required
by SLAS 03.

2.2.2 Accounting Deficiencies :

The following accounting deficiencies were observed in audit.

(a) A sum of Rs. 684,562,750 in respect of work in progress had been included in the property, plant and equipment in
the financial statements.

(b) Land occupied by the University had not been acquired, but compensation paid for the industrialists amounting to Rs.
11,695,907 had been shown in the financial statements as land and buildings.

(c) A sum of Rs. 2,283,453 being recurrent payments in respect of prior period had been brought to the financial statements
of the year under review.

(d) A sum of Rs. 2,648,449 being recurrent  payments in respect of the year under review had not been brought to the financial
statements.

(e) A sum of Rs. 17,543,682 being construction payments in respect of prior period had been brought to the financial
statements for the year under review.

2.2.3 Lack of Evidences for Audit :

The following items in the financial statements could not be satisfactorily vouched in audit in the absence of evidences indicated
against each items.

Item Value Evidence not made available
Rs.

(a) Furniture and  office equipment 34,115,740 (i) Board of Survey reports
(ii) Asset Registers

(b) Inventories 12,777,103 (i) Schedules
(ii) Board of Survey reports

(c) Busary 82,900 Schedules

(d) Mahapola 755,750 Schedule

(e) Provision for Gratuity 913,162 (i) Schedules
(ii) Number of employees

(iii) Payment Registers

2.2.4 Non-Compliance with laws, rules, regulations etc.

Instances of non-compliance observed in audit are given below.

Reference to Laws, Rules, Regulation etc. Particulars

(a) Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971 Section

(i) 8(i) Annual budget of the University for the year under review had not
been rendered for Audit.

(ii) 13(5) Half yearly Internal audit reports had not been furnished.
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(b) Financial Regulations of the Democratic
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka

(i) 155 An Audit Query Register had not been maintained

(ii) 371 17 advances amounting to Rs. 771,780 had been paid exceeding
the limit of Rs. 20,000

(iii) No. 756 A board  of survey had not been carried out for inventories and
fixed assets.

(c) Treasury Circular No. 842 of 19 December 1978 and A fixed assets register had not been maintained
University Grants Commission Circular No. 48 of 13
 November 1979

(d) National Procurement Agency Circular Procurement procedures had not been followed for purchasing
No. 08 of 25 January 2006 of library books amounting to Rs. 7,292,769 and cleaning

servcie for Rs. 3,448,953

(e) Section 1 of Chapter xxiv of Establishments code for the The verification of stores at irregular intervals had  not been
University Grants Commission and the Higher carried out during the year under review.
Education Institutions

3. Financial and Operating review :

3.1 Financial Review :

According to the financial statements presented, the working of the University for the year ended 31 December 2007 had
resulted in a surplus of Rs. 180,566 after taking into account the Government Grant of Rs. 65,800,000 received for recurrent
expenditure as against the deficit of Rs. 994,760 for the preceding year after taking into account the Government Grant of
Rs. 35,600,000 received  for recurrent expenditure for that year, thus indicating an improvement of Rs. 1,175,326 in the financial
result.

3.2 Human Resource Management :

Position of Approved Carder :

According to the approved carder of the University, 32 vacancies in the academic staff and 45 vacancies in non academic staff
had not been filled by the University.

3.3 Rent for Quarters :

According to Section 5 of Chapter  XIX of the Establishments Code of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka, rent
for the occupation of government quarters should be deducted from the salary of the occupants. The University had taken
on rent certain private houses for the University staff by making payment of Rs. 192,500, but no rent had been deducted from
the salaries of the occupants.

3.4 Hiring of Motor Vehicles :

The University had hired a motor vehicle for monthly payment of Rs. 66,000, without considering lowest bid of Rs. 54,000.
therefore the University had sustained a loss of Rs. 144,000 for the year under review due to rejection of the lowest bid.

07-90/2

Reference to Laws, Rules, Regulations  etc. Particulars
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PEOPLE’S   BANK—OLCOTT  MAWATHA  BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29 D of the People’s Bank Act,
No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No.32of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Borad of  Directors of the People’s Bank, under
Section 29 D of the People’s Bank Act, No.29 of 1961 as amended
by the Act, No.32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 2008.10.24.

Whereas, Thelge Kamal Shantha Peiris has made default in
payment due on Mortgage Bond No. 2797 dated 28.09.2006
attested by Mrs. A. D. R. Mendis Notary Public of Colombo and
in  favour of the People’s Bank and there is now due and owing
to the People’s Bank a sum of Rupees Two Million Seven
Hundred and Twenty-three Thousand Three Hundred and Forty
and cents Seventeen only (Rs.2,723,340.17) on the said Bond
No.2797. The Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the
powers vested in them by the People’s Bank Act, No.29 of 1961
as amended by Act, No.32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that the
property and premises mortgaged to the said Bank by the said
Mortgage Bond No.2797 be sold by Public Auction by E. S.
Ramanayake, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery  of
the sum of Rupees Two Million Seven Hundred and Twenty-
three Thousand Three Hundred and Forty and cents Seventeen
only (Rs.2,723,340.17) with further interest on Rupees Two
Million Seven Hundred and Twenty-three Thousand Three
Hundred and Forty and cents Seventeen only (Rs. 2,723,340.17)
at the rate of Eighteen percent (18%) per annum from 04.05.2008
to date of sale with costs and other charges of sale less payment
(if any) since received.

SCHEDULE

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked as “Lot
2” in Plan No.5355 dated 12th August 1999 made by Saliya
Wickramasinghe Licensed Surveyor of the Land called
Edippuliyawatta, Beligahawatta and Pahalawatta situated at
Megoda Kolonnawa within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of
Kotikawatta Mulleriyawa Ambatalenpahalin Alutkuru Korale
South in the Colombo district of  Western Province and which
said Lot 2 is bounded on the North by Lot 1 hereof on the East
by Property of Sunil Balasuriya on the South by property of
Edmund Wijesinghe on the West by Lot 3 hereof and containing,
in extent six Perches (0A., 0R., 6P) according, to said Plan No,.
5355 and registered under B 872/301 at the Land Registry of
Colombo.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked “Lot 3”
in aforesaid Plan No. 5355 of the land called Edippuliyawatta
Beligahawatta and Pahalawatta situated at Megoda Kolonnawa
aforesaid and which said Lot 2 is bounded on the North by
Property and Sepali Balasuriya and Sunil Balasuriya, on the
East by Lots 1 and 2 hereof, on the South by Property of
Edmund Wijesinghe, on the West by Property of Suneetha
Wijesuriya and Property of Pathma Seneviratna and Ranjani

Seneviratne and containing in extent Six Decimal Nine Perches
(0A., 0R., 6.90P) according to said Plan No.5355 and registered
under B. 872/302 at the Land Registry of Colombo.

Together with the Road Reservation over and along the lands
described below :

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked “Lot 1” in
Plan No. 5355 aforesaid of the land called Edippuliyawatta,
Beligahawatta and Pahalawatta situated at Megoda Kolonnawa
afoesaid and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Property
of SEpali Balasuriya and Sunil Balasuriya, on the East by Road, on
South by Lot 2 hereof, on the West by Lot 3 hereof and containing
in extent One decimal Six perches (0A., 0R., 1.60P.) according, to said
Plan No. 5355 and registered under B 872/303 at the Land Registry,
Colombo.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked “Lot 07”
(Road Reservation 10 feed wide) in Plan No.4081 dated 9th August
1984 made by M. S. Perera Licensed surveyor of the land called
Edippuliyawatta, Beligahawatta and Pahalawatta situated at Megoda
Kolonnawa within the Megoda Kolonnawa Road in Ambatalenpahala
of Aluthkuru Korale South in the Colombo District of Western
Province and which  said Lot 7 is bounded on the North by T. C. Road,
on the East by Lots 5 and 6, on the South by Lots 3 and 4, on the
West by Lots 2 and 1 and containing in  extent Three Decimal One
Perches (0A., 0R., 3.10P) according to said Plan No.4081 registered
B 645/259 at Colombo Land Registry and registered under B 888/106
at the Land Registry of Colombo.

The said Lot1, Lot 2 and Lot 3 being subdivisions of Lot A which
described below :

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked “LotA” in
Paln No. 2084 dated 27th May 1992 made by Saliya Wickramasinghe
Licensed Surveyor of the land called Edippuliayawatta, Beligahawatta
and Pahalawatta bearing Assessment No.67, Megoda Kolonnawa
Road situated at Megoda Kolonnawa within the limits of Kotikawatta
Mulleriyawa Pradeshiya Sabha in Ambatalenpahala Aluthkuru
Korale South in the Colombo District of Western Province and which
said Lot A is bounded on the North by Property of Sepali Balasuriya
and Sunil Balasuriya, on the East by Property of  Sunil Balasuriya
and Road, on the South by Property of Edmand Wijesinghe, on the
West by property of Suneetha Wijesuriya, Pathma Senevirathne and
Ranjani Senevirathne and containing in extent Fourteen Decimal Five
Nought Perches (0A., 0R., 0P, 14.50P) according to the said Plan   No.
2084 and registered under B. 888/106 at the Land Registry of
Colombo.

The said Lot A being a re-survey of Lot 2 which described below:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked “Lot 2” in
Plan No.1081 dated 09th August 1984 made by M. S. Perera licensed
surveyor of the land called Edippuliyawatta, Beligahawatta and
Beligahawatta situated at Megoda Kolonnawa within the
Ambatalenpahala of Aluthkuru Korale South in the Colombo District

Miscellaneous Departmental Notices
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POEPLE’  BANK—EMBULPITIYA  BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the Poeple’s Bank Act, No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act,
No.32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 2008.10.24.

Whereas Rubasin Siriwardena Gunasena, Sirimathi
Nanayakkara  have made default in payment due on the Bond
No.3065 dated 23.11.2007 attested by Janath Jayawardena
Notary Public in favour of the People’s Bank and there is now
due and owing to the People’s Bank a sum of Rupees Four
Hundred Thousand (Rs.400,000) on the said Bond. The Board
of Directors of People’s Bank under the powers vested in them
by the People’s Bank  Act, No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act,
No.32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that the property and premises
mortgaged to the said Bank by the said Bond No. 3065 to be sold
by Public Auction by A. S. Liyanage, Licensed Auctioneer of
Colombo for recovery of the said sum of Rupees Four Hundred
Thousand (Rs.400,000) with further interest thereon at 21% per
annum from 20.06.2007 to date of sale and costs and monies
recoverable under Section (29L) of the said People’s Bank Act
less payment (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 03
depicted in plan No. 1654 dated 9th February,2004 made by K. G.
Dharmaratne Licensed Surveyor of the land called and known as
Weliliyaddaralagehena, Dalukgahayaya and Weliliyadderalalage
Owita situated at Dapane Village within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits
of Kolonna in Diyapotagam Pattu of Kolonne Korale in the District
of Ratnapura, Sabaragamuwa Province and which said Lot 03 is
bounded on the North by Lot 02 in Plan No. 1478, on the East by
Lot 10 in Plan No. 1101, on the South by Lot 4 in Plan No. 1478 and
on the West by Lots 10 and 4 in Plan No. 1101 and containing in extent
One Acre Two Roods and Eighteen Decimal Four Five Perches

(01A., 02R., 18.45P) together with everything else standing there on
and registered under G. 93/226 at the District Land Registry of
Ratnapura.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Asst. General Manager,
Sabaragamuwa.

People’s Bank,
Sabaragamuwa Zonal Office,
New Town, Ratnapura.

07-97

HATTON  NATIONAL  BANK  PLC— DANKOTUWA
BRANCH

(Formerly Known as Hatton National Bank Ltd.)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Hatton
National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery of

Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No.04 of 1990

AT a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC
held on 31st March 2009 it was resolved specially and unanimously:

“Whereas Malporu Mudiyanselage Darshana Ruwan Kumara
as the obligor has made default in payment due on Bond
No. 16251 dated 01st March, 2007 attested by H. J. M. D.
Jayasinghe, Notary Public of Chilaw in favour of Hatton National
Bank PLC and there is now due and owing to the Hatton National
Bank PLC as at 30.06.2008 a sum of Rupees Three Hundred and
Sixty-two Thousand and Twenty and cents Seven only.
(Rs.362,020.07) on the said Bond and the Board of Directors of
Hatton National Bank PLC under the powers vested by the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No.04 of
1990, do hereby resolve that the property and premises morefully
described in the Schedule, hereto and mortgage to Hatton National
Bank PLC by  the said Bond No. 16251 be sold by Public Action
by I. W. Jayasooriya, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for
recovery of the said sum of Rs.362,020.07 together with further
interest from 01.07.2008 to date of sale together with costs of
advertising and other charges incurred less payments (if any)
since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot No.02
in Plan No.5347 dated 14.07.1998 made by S. B. Abeykoon Licensed
Surveyor of the land called Davatagahamula Hena Now Watta
situated at Verulagama in Pitigala Korale in Katugampola Hattpattu
of Kuliyapitiya Land Registry Division in District of Kurunegala in
North Western Province and which said Lot No.02 in aforesaid Plan
No. 5347 B is bounded on the North by Lot No.1 in aforesaid Plan
No. 5347 B, on the East by land called Verulugahawatta alias Ihala
Agara belonging to Salgadu, on the South by Lot No. 03 in the said
Plan No.5347 B and on the West by Road Reservation marked Lot
4 in the said Plan No.5347 B containing in extent Thirty-three

of Western Province and  which said Lot 2 is bounded on the North
by Lot 1 hereof, on the East by Lots 7 and 3, on the South by Lot
1 in Plan No.67 dated 25th July 1927 made by C.H. Freeda Licensed
Surveyor, on the West by Property of Hettige Hendric Appuhamige
and Containing in extent Fifteen Perches (0A., 0R., 15P) according,
to said Plan No.1081, Registered B 654/43 at Colombo Land
Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors.

Regional Manager,
(Colombo North).

Zonal Head Office- (Western Zone - 01),
No.11, Duke Street,
Colombo 01.

07-100
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Decimal Seven Perches (0A., 0R., 33.7P) together with the soil trees
plantations buildings and everything standing thereon registered
under title K 225/96, 97 at the land registry of Kuliyapitiya.

Together with the 10 feet wide Right of way marked Lot No.04
in aforesaid Plan No. 5347 B morefully described in the Schedule to
the aforesaid Bond No. 16251.

By order of the Board.

INDRANI GOONESEKERA,
DGM/(Legal)/Board Secretary.

07-125/2

HATTON   NATIONAL  BANK  PLC—GAMPOLA
BRANCH

(Formerly Known as Hatton National Bank Ltd.)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Hatton
National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery of

Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

AT  a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC
held on 29th April 2009 it was resolved specially and unanimously:

“Whereas Habakkala Arachchige Don Saranga Sashyani De
Silva and Moragammana Gedara Chandana Sarath Kumara as the
Obligors have made default in payment due on Bond No.5683
dated 6th July 2007 attested by T. B. Abeykoon Notary Public
of Gampola in favour of Hatton National Bank PLC and there is
now due and owing to the Hatton National Bank PLC as at 31st
December, 2008 a sum of  Rupees Two Hundred and Fifteen
Thousand Eight Hundred and Fifty One and Cents Forty Eight
Only (Rs.215,851.48) on the said Bond and the Board of
Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC under the power vested
by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No.04 of 1990, do hereby resolve that the Property and premises
morefully described in the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to
Hatton National Bank PLC by the said Bond No.5683 be sold by
Public Auction by I. W. Jayasuriya Licensed Auctioneer of
Colombo for recovery of the said sum of Rs.215,851.48 together
with further interest from 1st January 2009 to date of sale
together with costs  of advertising and other charges incurred less
payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided allotment of land marked Lot 1 depicted in Plan
No.2800 dated 18th August 2003 made by S. M. Abeyratne Licensed
Surveyor being a portion of the land called”Dachchagedara Watta”
situated at Doruwadeniya in Tispone Korale of Kotmale in Nuwara
Eliya District Central Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on
the North - west by Road from Nawalapitiya to Menikwatta East
by Staked boundary seperating Lot 2 South-east by staked boundary
separating Lot 4 and South -west by Live fence separating
Dachchagederawatta belonging to J. M. Heen Banda containing in

extent Fourteen decimal Eight Perches (0A, 0R., 14.8P) and the
building and everything else thereon and registered under Volume/
Folio Q 122/254 at the land Registry of Nuwara Eliya.

By order of the Board,

INDRANI GOONESEKARA,
DGE(Legal)/Board Secretary.

07-125/1

PAN   ASIA  BANKING   CORPORATION   PLC—WTC
BRANCH

Resolution Adopted by the Board of Dirctors of the Bank
under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

AT a meeting of the Board of Directors of Pan Asia Banking
Corporation PLC held on 27.05.2009 it was resolved specially and
unanimously as follows:

Whereas Outdoorsman (Private) Limited as the Obligor and
Sree Raj Hameed as the Mortgagor (a Director of the Obligor) have
made default in payment due on Mortgage Bond No. 1369 dated
01.09.2003 attested by N. I. Samarasinghe, Notary Public of
Colombo 1261 dated 22.01.2004, 1537 dated 13.01.2005 and
2604 dated 13.03.2008 and all attested by J. R. Dolawattage,
Notary Public of Colombo in favour of Pan Asia Banking
Corporation PLC bearing registraton No. PQ 48 formerly called
as Pan Asia Banking Corporation Limited and Pan Asia Bank
Limited.

And whereas there is now due and owing to the Pan Asia
Banking Corporation PLC (hereinafter sometimes called as “The
Bank”)

(a) a sum of Rupees Two Hundred and Fifteen Thousand Three
Hundred and Sixty-nine and Forty Five Cents (Rs.319,479.45)
on account of Principal and interest upto 16.04.2009 together
with interest on Rupees Three Hundred Thousand
(Rs.300,000) at the rate of 29% per annum from 17.04.2009.

(b) a sum of Rupees Three Hundred and Nineteen Thousand Four
Hundred and Seventy-nine and Cents Eighty-six
(Rs.215,369.86) on account of Principal and interest upto
16.04.2009 together with interest on Rupees Three Hundred
Thousand (Rs.300,000) at the rate of 29% per annum from
17.04.2009.

(c) a sum of Rupees One Million Nine Hundred and Twelve
Thousand Five Hundred and Twenty-one and cents Seventy
(Rs.1,912,521.70) on account of Principal and interest upto
31.03.2009 together with interest at the rate of 25% per
annum on Rupees One Million Five Hundred Thousand
(Rs.1,500,000) and at the rate of 38% per annum on the
amount exceeding Rupees One Million Five Hundred
Thousand (Rs1,500,000) from 01.04.2009.
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till date of payment on the said Bonds.

It is hereby Resolved :

That in terms of Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions)Act, No.04 of 1990 P. K. E. Senapathi the
Licensed Auctioneer at No.134, Baddagana Road, Kotte be authorized
and empowered to sell by Public auction the property mortgaged to
the Bank morefully described in the Schedule hereto and for the
recovery of the said sum of Rupees Two Million Four Hundred and
Forty-seven Thousand Three Hundred and Seventy-one and cents
One (Rs.2,447,371.01) due on the said Bond Nos.1369, 1261, 1537
and 2604 together with interest as aforesaid from the aforesaid dates
to date of sale and costs and monies recoverable under Section 13 of
the said Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No.04 of 1990.

SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot A
depicted in Plan No. 3264 dated 02.10.1999 made by G. B. Dodanwela
Licensed Surveyor and Leveller of the land called  Dambugahawatta
bearing Assessment No.435/8 Hokandara Road, situated at Hokandara
(being a resurvey of  Lot 3 in Plan No. 2778 dated 29.06.1988 made
by A. E. Wijesuriya Licensed Surveyor and Leveller) within the
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Kaduwela in Athurugiriya Sub office in
Palle Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the District of Colombo in Western
Province and which said Lot A is bounded on the North by Premises
bearing No. 435/9, Hokandara Road, Land of Dias, premises bearing
Assessment No. 435/14, Hokandara Road and Land of Wimalawathi
Subasinghe, on the East by Premises bearing Assessment
No.435/1C, Hokandara Road, on the South by Road and  on the West
by Premises bearing Assessment No.507/3, Hokandara Road, and
containing in extent One Rooad (0A.,1R., 0P) and registered in Vol/
Folio G 1788/142 at the Homagama Land Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors,

RANJIT PERERA,
Senior Manager - Recoveries.

07-155/1

PEOPLE’S  BANK — HAPUTALE   BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by Act No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following Resolution was uanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by Act,
No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 27.06.2008.

Whereas, Muthuthanthrilage Somapala, has made default in
payment due on Mortgage Bond No. 3876 dated 08.02.2006
attested by P. P. Nanayakkara, Notary Public, in favour of the
People’s Bank and there is now due and owing to the said People’s
Bank the sum of Rupees Three Hundred and Twenty-eight

Thousand Nine Hundred and Eighty-six and cents Eighty-four
(Rs. 328,986.84) on the said Bond No. 3876, the Board of
Directors of the People’s Bank under the powers vested by the
People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by Act, No. 32
of 1986, do hereby resolve that the property and premises
mortgaged to the said Bank by the said Bond No. 3876 be sold
by Public Auction by W. Jayatillake, Licensed Auctioneer of
Badulla for recovery of the said sum of Rupees Three Hundred
and Twenty-eight Thousand Nine Hundred and Eighty-six and
cents Eighty-four (Rs. 328,986.84) with further interest on
Rupees Three Hundred and Twenty-eight Thousand Nine Hundred
and Eighty-six and cents Eighty-four (Rs. 328,986.84) at the rate
of Twenty decimal Five per centum (20.5%) per annum from
07.11.2007 to date of sale and costs and moneys recoverable
under section ‘29L’ of the said People’s Bank Act less payment
(if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED

All that allotment of Crown Land marked Lot 81B depicted in
Plan No. le. ue. uq. ms .    54D authenticated by Government Surveyor
and kept under Nuwara-Eliya Divisional Secretary of the land called
“Pattipola Colony” situated at Pattipola Village within the Pattipola
G. S. Division. Oya Palatha Korale, Nuwara-Eliya Divisional
Secretary’s Division, in the Nuwara-Eliya District of the Central
Province and bounded on the North by Lot No. 82, East by Lot
No. 81, South by Road and on the West by Reservation for Rail Road
and containing in extent Two Roods (0A.,02R.,0P.) together with the
buildings plantation and everything else standing thereon and
appertaining thereto and registered under kqt43/395/2006 of the
Nuwara-Eliya District Land Registry.

By order of the Board of Driectors,

Regional Manager,
(Badulla)

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
Badulla.

07-101

PEOPLE’S    BANK

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under  Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the
Act, No. 32 of 1986 at their held on 24.04.2009.

“Whereas Nets N. Sea Private Limited under registration
No. N (PVS) 23733 a Private Limited Liability Company duly
incorporated under the companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 and having
its registered office at No. 45 1st lane, Gothami Road, Colombo
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08 has made default in payment due on concurrent Mortgage
Bond bearing No. 45 dated 5th, 19th and 21st July, 2000 attested
by Pilane Gardiye Godakandage Srimathi Muditha Jayawickrama,
Notary Public of Colombo, by which Nets N Sea Private Limited
Mortgaged the property morefully described in the Schedule
hereto and in the Schedule to the said concurrent mortgage bond
bearing No. 45 in favour of the People’s Bank and Seylan Bank
Limited.

Whereas the People’s Bank has granted a sum of Rupees
Twenty Million (Rs. 20,000,000.00) to the said obligor on the
security of the said concurrnet bond bearing No. 45 and the said
obligor has defaulted the payments and there is now due and
owing to the People’s Bank a sum of Rupees Forty-five Million
Six Hundred Forty-six Thousand Eight Hundred Forty-nine and
cents Nineteen (Rs. 45,646,849.19) to with further interest on
Rupees Twenty Million (Rs. 20,000,000.00) at the rate of
Twenty-one decimal Five (21.5%) per annum from 01.09.2007
on the said Bonds.

Whereas the Seylan Bank Limited has granted a sum of Rupees
Ten Million (Rs. 10,000,000.00) to the Obligor on the Security
of the aforesaid concurrent Mortgage Bond bearing No. 45 and
the Obligor has made default in the payment of sums due on the
aforesaid syndicated loan facilities and as at 21.08.2007 a sum of
Rupees Eighteen Million Two Hundred Ninety-one Thousand
Two Hundred Fifty-eight and cents Forty-seven
(Rs. 18,291,258.47) together with further interest on Rupees
Eight Million Six Hundred and Fifty Thousand (Rs. 8,650,000.00)
at the rate of Twenty-one (21%) per annum from 01.09.2007 till
payment in full, of the said syndicated loan which is now due and
owing by the said Obligor to Seylan Bank  Limited.

Whereas the property morefully described in the Schedule
hereto is mortgaged by the Obligor as security for the syndicated
loan facilities obtained by the Obligor from the consortium of the
Banks and the Seylan Bank Limited has assigned its rights under
the assignment of mortgage bearing No. 203/5126 dated
13th October, 2008 and 20th October, 2008 attested by
consecetively Govinda Rathnayaka Wasala Mudiyanselage Piyal
Bandara Weerakoon, Notary Public of Colombo and Gnana
Ekanayake, Notary Public of Colombo to the People’s Bank
itself to take necessary action to recover the outstanding.

The Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the
powers vested in them by the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961
as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that
the property and premises mortgaged to the said Bank by the said
Mortgage Bond bearing No. 45 be sold by Public Auction by
E. S. Ramanayakae, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery
of the sum of Rupees Forty-five Million Six Hundred Forty-six
Thousand Eight Hundred Forty-nine and cents Nineteen
(Rs. 45,646,849.19) with further interest on Rupees Twenty
Million (Rs. 20,000,000.00) at the rate of Twenty-one Decimal
Five (21.5%) per annum from 01.09.2007 up to the date of sale
and costs of sale less payments (if any) sine received and a sum
of Rupees Eighteen Million Two Hundred and Ninety-one
Thousand Two Hundred and Fifty-eight and cents Forty-seven
(Rs. 18,291,258.47) with further interest on Rupees Eight

Million Six Hundred Fifty Thousand (Rs. 8,650,000.00) at the
rate of Twenty-one (21%) per annum from 01.09.2007 till
payment in full and which said sum has been assigned to the
People’s Bank by assignment of mortgaged bearing No. 203/5126
aforesaid.

THE FIRST SCHEDULE

All those leasehold rights over all that divided and defined
allotment of land marked Lot 31A depicted in Plan No. 508 dated
02.07.1999 made by H. K. Mahinda, Licensed Surveyor in Block ‘A’
in Mirigama Export Processing Zone, being a sub-division of the land
called Mahayaya Estate (Entire land depicted in PP CO 4956 dated
03.07.1978) depicted in Plan No. 3400 dated February, March, 1994
made by K. E. J. B. Perera, Licensed Surveyor situated at Loluwagoda,
Kadangamuwa Village within the Pradeshiya Sabawa Limits of
Mirigama, Sub-office Kandalama in Udugaha Pattu of Hapitigam
Korale in the District of Gampaha, Western Province, together with
buildings, fixed machinery and equipment described below, and
everything standing thereon, and which said Lot 31A is bounded on
the North by reservation for road and rock claimed by BOI and
reservation for road, East by part of the same land claimed by BOI
(Lot 30), South by part of the same land claimed by BOI and on the
West by part of the same land claimed by BOI (Lot 32) and containing
in extent Two Acres Two Roods and Six Decimal Three Five Perches
(2A, 2R, 06.35P) or one decimal Naught Two Eight Naught Hectares
(1.0280 Hec.) as per the aforesaid Plan No. 508 and registered at the
Negombo Land Registry under F 256/278.

THE SECOND SCHEDULE

No. Item Quantity Origin Year
of

Manufacture

1. Mematech Net Making 04 sets India 1999
Machine 7 Pitch 510 shuttles
Double/Single (Knot) with
bobbin winder and set of
spares

2. Mematech Net Marking 02 sets India 1999
Machine 9 Pitch 440 shuttles
Double/Single (Knot) with
bobbin winder and set of
spares

3. Heat Lenght Stretching 01 set India 1999
Machine LSM -15

4. Boiling Equipment 01set India 1999
with Boiler,Tanks Chain
Pulley and Net Building
Machine

5. Miscellaneous 01 set India 1999
Equipment i.e. Weighing
Scales, Chain Pully Blocks,
Baskets, Hand Trolleys etc.
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6. Fork Lift 01 No. India 1999

By order of the Board of Directors of People’s Bank,

Chief Manager, Assistant General Manager,
(Customer Relationship - 2) Recoveries - Corporate

Banking Division.

People’s Bank,
Corporate Banking Division,
35, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.

07-93

No. Item Quantity Origin Year
of

Manufacture

HATTON   NATIONAL   BANK   PLC—CITY   OFFICE
BRANCH

(Formerly known as Hatton National Bank Ltd.)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Hatton
National Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

AT a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC
held on 28t May, 2009 it was resolved specially and unanimously:

“Whereas Standard Trading Company (Private) Limited as
the Obligor and Niranjali Lakshmi Sriyani Fernando as the
Mortgagor, Mortgaged and hypothecated property morefully
described in the Bond Nos. 896 dated 22nd December, 1989
attested by N. I. Goonesekera Notary Public of Colombo, 2040
dated 28th August, 2003 attested by N. M. C. P. Wettasinha
Notary Public of Colombo, 2576 dated 07th December, 2004 and
3482 dated 28th September, 2007 both attested by M. P. M.
Mohotti Notary Public of Colombo in favour of Hattion National
Bank PLC as security for repayment of loans granted by Hatton
National Bank PLC, to standard Trading Company (Private)
Limited”;

“Whereas the aforesaid Niranjali Lakshmi Sriyani Fernando
is an owner and a person who is in control of the aforesaid
Standard Trading Company (Private) Limited in as much as the
aforesaid Niranjali Lakshmi Sriyani Fernando holds shares of the
said Standard Trading Company (Private) Limited and as a
Director of standard Trading Company (Private) Limited is in
control and management of the said Company and accordingly,
the aforesaid Niranjali Lakshmi Sriyani Fernando is the actual
beneficiary of the financial accommodation granted by the Hattion
National Bank PLC to Standard Trading Company (Private)
Limited :

And whereas Standard Trading Company (Private) Limited
and Niranjali Lakshmi Sriyani Fernando have made default in
payment of the sum due to Hatton National Bank PLC and there

is now due and owing to the Hatton National Bank PLC as at 18th
January, 2008 a sum of Rupees Seventy-seven Million Nine
Hundred and Nineteen Thousand Eight Hundred and Thirty-two
and cents Fifty-seven (Rs. 77,919,832.57) on the said Bonds and
the Board of Directors of Hatton National PLC under the power
vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)
Act No. 04 of 1990, do hereby resolve that the property
morefully described in the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to
Hatton National Bank PLC by the said Bond Nos. 896, 2040,
2576 and 3482 be sold by Public Auction by I. W. Jayasuriya
Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery of the said sum of
Rs. 77,919,832.57 together with further interest from 19th
January, 2008 to date of sale together with costs of advertising
and other charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted as Lot 1
in Plan No. 80/26 (LRC/KO/1919) dated 10th July, 1980 made by
L. D. S. Kariyawasam - Licensed Surveyor from and out of the land
called “Kohombe Estate” situated in the Villages of Pirappankuliya
& Maradankulama in Munneswaram Pattu of Pitigal Korale (North)
within the District of Puttalam but within the Registration Division
of Chilaw North Western Province and is bounded on the North by
parts of Lots 2 and 3 in PP 697 on the East by Kohombe Estate
claimed by D. C. Wijewardena and Maradankulama Kokkawila on
the South by Maradankulama and Kokkawila Road and Cart track
and on the West by Cart tract and ditch and containing in extent Fifty
acres (50A, 0R, 0P) according to the said Plan No. 80/26 and
registered in C 166/150 in the Chilaw District Land Registry.

By order of the Board,

INDRANI GOONASEKERA,
DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

07-125/4

HATTON   NATIONAL   BANK   PLC—KANDY
BRANCH

(Formerly known as Hatton National Bank Ltd.)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Hatton
National Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

AT a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC
held on 28th May, 2009 it was resolved specially and unanimously:

“Whereas Girigoris Jansage Thamara Chandrakanthi,
Dissanayake Mudiyanselage Harischandra Dissanayake and
Dissanayake Mudiyanselage Muthu Banda Dissanayake as the
Obligors have made default in payment due on Bond No. 4583
dated 26th February, 2008 attested by K. D. Elangasinha Notary
Public of Kandy in favour of Hatton National Bank PLC and there
is now due and owing to the Hatton National Bank PLC as at 31st
August, 2008 a sum of Rupees One Million Three Hundred and
Thirty-nine Thousand Five Hundred and Seventy-three and
cents Twenty Seven only (Rs. 1,339,573/27) on the said Bond
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and the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC under
the power vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, do hereby resolve that the
property and premises morefully described in the schedule,
hereto and mortgaged to Hatton National Bank PLC by the said
Bond No. 4583 be sold by Public Auction by I. W. Jayasuriya
Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery of the said sum of
Rs. 1,339,573/27 together with further interest from
01st September, 2008 to date of sale together with costs of
advertising and other charges incurred less payments (if any)
since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1E in
Plan No. 1105 dated 21st September 1983 made by U. R. Rathnayake
Lisensed Surveyor from and out of all that land called Godamunne
Watte situated at Pahingamuwa in Kandukara Pahala Korale of Uda
Palatha in the District of Kandy (Registration Division of Gampola)
in the Central Province and bounded on the North by Lot C on the
East by Main Road and Lot 1D, on the South by Lot 1G and on the
West by Lot 1D and containing in extent Seventeen Decimal Eight
Nine Perches (0A, 0R, 17.89P) together with everything thereon,
registered under Volume/Folio C262/05 at the Gampola Land Registry.

By order of the Board,

INDRANI GOONASEKERA,
DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

07-125/3

BANK   OF   CEYLON

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon Ordinance
(Cap. 307) as amended by Act, No. 34 of 1968 and Law

No. 10 of 1974

AT a meeting held on 22.05.2009 the Board of Directors of the Bank
resolved specially and unanimously that.

The resolution referred to above it is hereby resolved :

Whereas a sum of  Rupees Six Hundred Eighty -four Thousand
Three Hundred Sixty-four and cents Four only (Rs. 684,364.04)
and Rupees Six Hundred Five Thousand Five Hundred Twenty
-six and cents Fifty-two only (Rs. 605,526.52 ) is due from
Mr. Wickrama Pathirennehelage Cyril Kumaratunga and
Mr. Ranthotuvila Patabendige Somasiri of Jambugahahena,
Nawadagala on account of principal and Interest up to 06.04.2009
together with interest on Rupees Four Hundred Eighty-eight
Thousand Four Hundred Twelve and cents Twenty-eight only
(Rs. 488,412.28) and Rupees Three Hundred Eighty-three
Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety-eight and cents Twenty-two
only (Rs. 383,998.22) at the rate of 15.68% per annum and

24.75% per annum respectively from 07.04.2009 till date of
payment on Bond No. 1744 dated 08.02.2005 attested by P. P.
Manjula Mendis, Notary Public of Galle and Additional Bond
No. 5216 dated 02.06.2006 attested by Wijepala Mahagodage
Notary Public of Elpitiya.

That in terms of section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon Ordinance
(Cap.397) and its amendments, Mr. M. H. Padmananda
Siriwardana, No. 39, Wilfred Gunasekara Mawatha, Fort, Matara
be authorized and empowered to sell by public auction the
property mortgaged to the Bank of Ceylon and described in the
Schedule hereunder for the recovery of the sum of Rs. 684,364.04
(Rupees Six Hundred Eighty Four Thousand Three Hundred
Sixty Four and Cents Four only) and Rs. 605,526.52 (Rupees Six
Hundred Five Thousand Five Hundred Twenty Six and Cents
Fifty Two only) due on the said Bond No. 1744 and Additional
Bond No. 5216 respectively together with interest as aforesaid
from 07.04.2009 todate of sale and costs and monies recoverable
under Section 26 of the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance and that
the Branch Manager of Elpitiya Branch of the Bank of Ceylon
to publish notice of this resolution in terms of Section 21 of the
said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance.

THE SCHEDULE

All that allotment of land marked Lot No. 96 in Plan No. 1992
uq. ms. .d. 1992 authenticated by the Surveyor General of the land called
Jambugaskanda situated at Nawadagala Village in Bentara Walallawiti
Korale-East in the Galle District, Southern Province and which said
Lot No. 96 is bounded on the North by Lot Nos. 92 and 95, on the
East by Lot No. 105, on the South by Lot No. 99 and on the West
by Lot No. 95 and 97 and containing in extent Naught decimal One
Six Hectares (0.166Ha.) And Registered in L. D. O. N. 168 at the Land
Registry, Balapitiya.

Which said Lot A according to a recent survey Plan No. 1109/
2004 dated 26.09.2004 made by W. G. D. U. Karunaratne Licensed
Surveyor is described as follows :-

All that allotment of land marked Lot A Depicted in the said Plan
No. 1109/2004 of the land called Jambugaskanda situated at
Nawadagala aforesaid and which said Lot A is bounded on the North
by Lot Nos. 92 and 95 in P P. .d. /1992 by Lot 105 (Road) in P. P.
.d./1992 and on the West by Lot No. 95 and 97 in P. P. .d./1992 and
containing in extent One Rood and Twenty Five decimal Six Perches
(0A. 1R. 25.6P.) together with buildings trees plantations and
everything else standing thereon.

MR. S. A. D. WIMALASIRI,
Branch Manager.

Bank of Ceylon,
Elpitiya.

07-140
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BANK   OF  CEYLON

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon Ordinance
(Cap. 307) as amended by Act, No. 34 of 1968 and Law

No. 10 of 1974

AT a meeting held on 22.05.2009 the Board of Directors of the Bank
of Ceylon resolved specially and unanimously that.

1. That a sum of Rupees Five Hundred and Twenty-two
Thousand Six Hundred and Thirty-eight and cents Ninety-six
only (Rs. 522,638.96) on loan account and Rupees Six
Hundred and Six thousand Four Hundred and Fifty-four and
cents Three only (Rs. 606,454.03) on POD Account is due
from Mr. Korrale Kankanamge Samantha Wijesekara of
No. 248/53 Dammodaya Mawatha, Monaragala on account
of principal and interest up to 07.04.2009 together with
interest on Rupees Four Hundred and Twenty-four Thousand
Nine Hundred and Eighty-five only (Rs. 424,985) at the rate
of Twenty-eight decimal Five (28.5%) per annum from
08.04.2009 on loan account and balance outstanding and
interest upto 07.04.2009. together with interest on Rupees
Five Hundred and Thirty-three Thousand Six Hundred and
Thirty-two and cents Sixty-seven only (Rs. 533,632.67) at
the rate of Twenty-five decimal Five (25.5%) per annum from
08.04.2009 on permanent Overdraft till date of payment on
Primary Mortgage Bond No. 15342 dated 12.09.2007 attested
by Mrs. M. C. Jayaranee Peeris, Notary Public.

2. That in terms of Section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon Ordinance
(Cap. 397) and its amendments, Mr. W. Jayathilake Auctioneer
of No. 48, Kalugalpitiya, Badulla be authorized and empowered
to sell by Public Auction, the property mortgaged to the Bank
of Ceylon and described in the schedule hereunder for the
recovery of  the said sum of Rupees Five Hundred & Twenty
Two Thousand Six Hundred & Thirty Eight and Cents Ninety
Six only (Rs. 522,638.96) on loan account and Rupees Six
Hundred & Six thousand Four Hundred & Fifty Four and
Cents Three only (Rs. 606,454.03) on POD Account due on
the said Bond No. 15342 together with interest as above said
from 08.04.2009 on loan and POD accounts up to date of sale
and costs and monies recoverable under Section 26 of the said
Bank of Ceylon Ordinance and that the Branch Manager of the
Monaragala Branch of the Bank of Ceylon to publish notice
of this resolution in terms of Section 21 of the said Bank of
Ceylon Ordinance.

THE SCHEDULE

All that defined and divided portion of Land called and known
as “Getambehena Mahapitiyeyaya alias “Pelayaya” situated at
Muppanegama Village, in Buttala Wedirata Korale, in Moneragla
Division, in the District of Moneragala, Uva Province and which said
portion of land is depicted as Lot No. 01 in Plan of Survey bearing
No. 341 dated 30.03.1999 made by T. B. Attanayake Licensed
Surveyor, and which said portion of land is bounded according to the
said Plan, on the North by Remaining portion of same Land, on the
East by Access Road (6 Meters wide), on the South by the land

belonging to Rev. Kalugala Rathnapala, and on the West by Remaining
Portion of same land, and containing in extent within these boundaries
One Rood and Ten Perches (0A. 1R. 10P.) or Nought decimal One
Two Six Four Hectare (0.1264 Hec.) together with the Access Road
and everything else standing thereon, and registered under L 36/208
at the Moneragala Land Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of
Ceylon,

A. G. Sirinimal,
Manager.

Bank of Ceylon,
Monaragala.

07-143

PAN   ASIA   BANKING    CORPORATION   PLC—
MATARA  BRANCH

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of the Bank
under section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

AT a meeting of the Baord of Directors of Pan Asia Banking
Corporation PLC held on 27.05.2009 it was resolved specially and
unanimously as follows :-

Whereas Hewa Rubasinghage Sunil also known as Sunil Hewa
Rubasinghe and Amitha Kumudini Kandambi as the obligors and
Amitha Kumudini Kandambi as the Mortgagor have made default
in payment due on Mortgage Bond Nos. 9547 dated 26th July
2007 and No. 10308 dated 23.10.2008 both attested by P. G. C.
Nanayakkara, Notary Public of Matara, in favour of Pan Asia
Banking Corporation PLC bearing Registration No. PQ 48
formerly called as Pan Asia Banking Corporation Limited and Pan
Asia Bank Limited;

And Whereas there is now due and owing to the Pan Asia
Banking Corporation PLC (hereinafter sometimes called as “the
Bank”)

(i) a sum of Rupees Eight Hundred and Forty-seven Thousand
Nine Hundred and Three and cents Thirty-five
(Rs. 847,903.35) on account of principal and interest up to
31.03.2009 together with interest at the rate of Twenty-six
per centum (26%) per annum on Rupees Seven Hundred
Thousand (Rs. 700,000) and at the rate of Thirty-eight per
centum (38%) per annum on the amount exceeding Rupees
Seven Hundred Thousand (Rs. 700,000) from 01.04.2009.

(ii) a sum of Rupees Two Million One Hundred and Ninety-five
Thousand Seven Hundred and Seventy-six and cents Nought
One (Rs. 2,195,776.01) on account of Principal and interest
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upto 16.04.2009 together with interest at the rate of Twenty
-nine per centum (29%) per annum on Rupees Two Million
(Rs. 2,000,000) from 29.03.2009.

till date of payment on the said Bonds.

It is hereby resolved :-

That in terms of Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 Ms. Sriyani Manamperi
Licensed Auctioneer of M. S. Auction, No. 09, Belment Street,
Colombo 12 be authorized and empowered to sell by public auction
the property mortgaged to the Bank morefully described in the
Schedule hereto and for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Three
Million Forty Three Thousand Six Hundred and Seventy Nine and
Cents Thirty Six (Rs. 3,043,679.36) due on the said Bond Nos. 9547
and No. 10308 together with interest as aforesaid from the aforesaid
dates to the date of sale and costs and monies recoverable under
Section 13 of the said Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990;

THE SCHEDULE

All that the entirety of the soil, plantations and everything else
standing thereon of the divided and separated Lot 1 of the land called
Kongahakoratuwa alias Sedara Arachchige Gedarawatta alias
Pahalagedara watta depicted in Plan No. 866 dated 22.06.1997 made
by H. J. Samarapala Licensed Surveyor situated at Kamburupitiya
in Gangabadapattu in the District of Matara Southern Province and
which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Gamageigedarawatta
on the East by Road to Kamburupitiya from residence and Lot 2 of
the same land on the South by Lot 2 of the same land and
Karatotagewatta and on the West by Owilana and Ela separating
Beliatta Okanda and containing in extent One Rood and Five perches
(0A. 1R. 5P.) according to the said Plan No. 866 and registered under
title C 587/263 at the Land Registry of Matara.

By Order of Directors,

MANONEETHA ARIYANANDA,
Manager - Recoveries.

07-155/4

PAN   ASIA   BANKING   CORPORATION   PLC—
RAJAGIRIYA   BRANCH

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of the Bank
under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

AT a meeting of the Board of Directors of Pan Asia Banking
Corporation PLC held on 27.05.2009 it was resolved specially and
unanimously as follows :-

Whereas in Steel Projects (Private) Limited as the Obligor and
Honnanthara Arachige Viraj Rohan Gunathilake as the Mortgagor
(a Director of the Obligor) have made default in payment due on
Mortgage Bonds No. 1670 dated 07.10.2008 attested by N. R.
Hewathanthri, Notary Public of Colombo in favour of Pan Asia
Banking Corporation PLC bearing registration No. PQ 48 formerly
called as Pan Asia Banking Corporation Limited and Pan Asia
Bank Limited;

And Whereas there is now due and owing to the Pan Asia
Banking Corporation PLC (hereinafter sometimes called as “the
Bank”) a sum of Rupees Three Million Twenty Eight Thousand
Two Hundred and Twenty Two and Cents Seventy Nine
(Rs. 3,028,222.79) on account of principal and interest upto
16.04.2009 together with interest on a sum of Rupees Two
Million Eight Hundred and Ninety Two Thousand Three Hundred
and Sixty One and Cents Twelve (Rs. 2,892,361.12) at the rate
of 29% per annum from 17.03.2009 till date of payment on the
said Bond.

It is hereby Resolved :

That in terms of Section 4 of the Revocery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 P. K. E. Senapathi Licensed
Auctioneer of No. 134, Beddagana Road, Kotte be authorised and
empowered to sell by public auction the property mortgaged to the
Bank morefully described in the Schedule hereto and for the recovery
of the said sum of Rupees Three Million Twenty Eight Thousand
Two Hundred and Twenty Two and Cents Seventy Nine
(Rs. 3,028,222.79) due on the said Bond Nos, 1670 together with
interest as  aforesaid from 17.03.2009 to date of sale and costs and
monies recoverable under Section 13 of the said Recovery of Loans
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 15
depicted in Plan No. 3100 dated 28th December, 1989 made by
A. E. Wijesurriya Licensed Surveyor of the land called Hinna Owita
bearing Assessment No. 61/46/O Abeyratne Mawatha, situated at
Boralesgamuwa within the Urban Council Limits of Boralesgamuwa
in the Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale in the District of Colombo Western
Province and which said Lot 15 is bounded on the North-east by Lots
14 on the South-east by Lot 24 (Ela) on the South-west by Lot 16
and on the North-west by Lot 13 (reservation for road 20ft wide) and
containing in extent Thirteen decimal One Five Perches
(0A. 0R. 13.15P.) and registered under title M 2229/138 at the
Mt. Lavinia Land Registry. (Now at Delkanda, Nugegoda).

Together with the right of way over and along Lots 13,21 and 23
in the said Plan No. 3100 and Lot 7A in Plan No. 3055 dated
27.10.1989 made by A. E. Wijesuriya Licensed Surveyor.

By Order of Directors,

MANONEETHA ARIYANANDA,
Manager - Legal

07-155/3
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PEOPLE’S  BANK — ALAWWA   BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No.32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by Act,
No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 29.08.2008 :

Whereas Agambarage Prasad Niranjan De Alwis has made
default in payment due on Mortgage Bond No. 1772 dated
10.05.2006 attested by Mrs. P. M. Dayuani Perera, Notary
Public of Kurunegala District in favour of the People’s Bank and
there is now due and owing to the People’s Bank a sum of Rupees
Five Hundred Eighty seven Thousand Four Hundred (Rs.587,400)
on the said Mortgage Bond and the Board of Directors of the
People’s Bank under the power vested by the Section 29 D of the
People’s Bank Act ,No.29 of 1961 as amended by Act ,No.32 of
1986 do hereby resolve that the property and the premises
mortgaged to the said Bank by the said Mortgage Bond No. 1772
be sold by Public Auction by Schockman and Samarawickrema,
Licensed Auctioneer of Kandy for recovery of the said sum of
Rupees Five Hundred Eighty Seven Thousand Four Hundred
(Rs.587,400) with further interest on Rupees Five Hundred
Eighty Seven Thousand Four Hundred (Rs.587,400) at Twenty
decimal Five per centum per annum (20.5%) from 21.05.2008 to
the date of sale and costs and moneys recoverable under Section
29D of the said People’s Bank Act less payments (if any) since
received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked as Lot 01
depicted in Plan No.3659 and 04.06.2006 made by Mr. K. A.
Amaratunga, Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Kosgahawelle
Hena and Kosgolle Watta” situated at Humbuluwa in Udukaha South
Korale of  Dambadeni Hathpattuwa in the District of Kurunegala
North Western Province Containing in extent of Two Roods and
Twenty Perches (0A., 02R., 20P) and bounded on the ; North by :
Road, East by : Main Road from Giriulla to Alawwa,  South by :
Remaining portion of this land, West by : Remaining portion of this
land and land belonged to Ranjani Marasinghe, together with trees,
plantations, buildings and everything standing thereon (F 1288/111-
Kurunegala.).

By order of the Board of Directors,

Assistant General manager,
(Zonal Office).

People’s Bank,
Zonal Office,
No.210,
Wehera, Kurunegala.

07-98

PEOPLE’S  BANK—KALPITIYA  BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No.32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the
Act, No.32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 19.12.2008.

Payment due on Mortgage Bond No. 2719 dated 01.06.2005,
attested by Mrs. Ruwini A. S. Dassanayake, Notary Public of
Marawila. Rathugamage Terrance Nilantha Fernando, had made
default in payment and there is now due and owing to the said
People’s Bank a sum of Rupees Five Hundred and Eighty-four
Thousand Three Hundred and Fifty-six and cents Eighty-six
(Rs.584,356.86) on the said Mortgage Bond. The Board of
Directors of the People’s Bank under the powers vested by
Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act, No.29 of 1961 as amended
by Act, No.32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that the property and
premises mortgaged to the said Bank by the said Mortgage Bond
No. 2719 be sold by Public Auction by W. P. Perera, Licensed
Auctioneer of Negombo for the recovery of the said sum of
Rupees Five Hundred and Eighty-four Thousand Three Hundred
and Fifty-six and cents Eighty-six (Rs.584,356.86) with further
interest at 15.75% from 29.08.2008 for the sum Rupees Five
Hundred and Eighty-four Thousand Three Hundred and Fifty-
six and cents Eighty-six (Rs.584,356.86) up to the date of sale
with costs and other charges under Section ‘29L’ of the relevant
People’s Bank Act, Less payments (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY/PROPERTIES
MORTGAGED

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted in Plan
No.3048, dated 21.07.1998 by Mr. R. F. H. Fernando,
Licensed Surveyor for the land called “Kadolkelle” situated
in the  village called Mattakotuwa, in Yatakalan Pattu, in
Pitigal Korale South, within the Land Registry Division of
Matale, in Puttalam District, North Central Province in
bounded as follows North East Lot No.”A” in Plan No. 2265,
South -East, Alamba, South - West : Lot No. “C” in Plan
No. 2265, North -West Road leading from Thoduwawa to
Mahawewa. situated within the above boundaries and bearing
an extent of Naught Acre Three Roods Eight Perches
(0A., 3R., 08P) of land with soil, trees, plantation, fruits,
buildings and everything standing thereon.

This land is registered at the Marawila Land Registry under
No. K. 19/244.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Regional Manager,
Puttalam.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office - Chilaw,
No.79, Marawila Road,
Nattandiya.

07-99
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PEOPLE’S     BANK—KURUNEGALA     BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No.32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by Act,
No.32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 26.09.2008.

Whereas Seekku Hewage Sunilrathne Kumara Silva and
Magalage Damayanthi Nimalarathne have made defult in payment
due on Mortgage Bond No. 3373 dated 03.09.2003 attested by
Mrs. Y. P. K. Tennakoon Notary Public of Kurunegala District
and on Mortgage Bond No. 3374 dated 03.09.2003 attested by
the said Notary Public in favour of the People’s Bank and there
is now respectiverly due and owing to the People’s Bank a sum
of Rupees Four Hundred Eighty Nine Thousand Seven Hundred
and One (Rs.489,701) and Rupees Nine Hundred Eighty Six
Thousand Five Hundred Ninty and cents Thirty (Rs.986,590.30)
on the said Mortgage Bond and the Board of Directors of the
People’s Bank under the power vested by the Section 29D of the
People’s Bank Act,  No.29 of 1961 as amended by Act ,No.32
of 1986 do hereby resolve that the property and the premises
mortgaged to the said Bank by the said Mortgage Bond
Nos. 3373 and 3374 be sold by Public Auction by Schockman and
Samarawickrama, Licensed Auctioneer of Kandy for recovery of
the said sum of Rupees Four Hundred Eighty-nine Thousand
Seven Hundred and One (Rs. 489,701) and Rupees Nine Hundred
Eighty-six Thousand Five Hundred Ninety and cents Thirty
(Rs.986,590.30) with further  interest on Rupees Four Hundred
Eighty-nine Thousand Seven Hundred and One (Rs.489,701) at
Twenty per centum per annum (20%) and Rupees Nine Hundred
Eighty-six Thousand Five Hundred Ninety and cents Thirty
(Rs.986,590.30) at Eighteen per centum per annum (18%) from
24.06.2008 to the date of sale and costs and moneys recoverable
under Section 29D of the said People’s Bank Act less payments
(if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY/PROPERTIES
MORTGAGED

All  that divided and defined allotment of land marked as Lot 01
depicted in Plan No. 3195 dated 01.09.2003 made by Mr. H. M. S.
Herath, Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Poththe Kumbura and
adjoining Pillewa now Watta” situated at Bamunugedara in
Kudagalbada Korale of Weuda Villi Hathpattuwa in the District of
Kurunegala North Western Province containing in extent of Twenty
Perches (0A., 0R., 20P) and bounded on the ; North by : Remaining
portion of Lot No.02 of Plan No. 259, East by : Divisional Council
Road, South and South -West by : Land belonged to H. A. Upali
Bandula, together with trees, plantations, buildings and everything
standing thereon.

This land is made by resurveying the land described below.

01. All that land depicted in Plan No. 3195 dated 19.06.1991 made
by Mr. H. M. S. Herath, Licensed Surveyor of the land called
“Poththe Kumbura and adjoining Pillewa now Watta” situated
at Bamunugedara in Kudagalbada Korale of Weuda Villi

Hathpattuwa in the District of Kurunegala North Western
Province containing in extent of Twenty Perches (0A., 0R.,
20P) and bounded on the ; North by : Remaining portion of
Lot No.02 of Plan No. 259, East by : Village Council road,
South and South -West by : Paddy field belonged to H. A.
Nironanda, together with trees, plantations, buildings and
everything standing thereon.

02. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked as Lot
01 depicted in Plan No. 3048 A and 01.09.2003 made by
Mr. H. M. S. Herath, Licensed Surveyor of the land called
“Poththe Kumbura and adjoining Pillewa now Watta” situated
at the aforesaid Bamunugedara containing in extent of One
Rood Eight Perches (0A., 1R., 08P) and bounded on the ;
North by : Lot No.01 of Plan No. 259, East by : Divisional
Council road, South by : Land belonged to H. A. Upali Bandula
and remaining portion Lot 02 of Plan No. 259, West by : paddy
field to Kiri Banda, together with trees, plantations, buildings
and everything standing thereon.

The above land is made by resurveying the land described below :

All that land depicted in Plan No. 3048 and 19.06.1991 made by
Mr. H. M. S. Herath, Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Poththe
Kumbura and adjoining Pillewa now Watta” situated at Bamunugedara
in Kudagalbada Korale of Weuda Villi Hathpattuwa in the District
of Kurunegala North Western Province containing in extent of One
Rood Eight Perches (0A., 01R., 08P) and bounded on the ; North by
: Lot No. 01 of Plan No.259, East by : Village Council Road, South
by : Lot 02 but more correctly Remaining portion of Lot 02 of Plan
No. 259 and Paddy Field of H. A. Nironanda, West by : Paddy field
of Kiri Banda, together with trees, plantations, buildings and
everything standing thereon (A.1041/261- Kurunegala).

By order of the Board of Directors,

Assistant General Manager,
(Zone of North Western).

People’s Bank,
Zonal Office,
No.210,
Wehera, Kurunegala.

07-96

NATIONAL    DEVELOPMENT    BANK   PLC

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors under
Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special

Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

AT a Meeting of the Board of Directors of the National Development
Bank PLC held on 26th January 2009 the following resolution was
specially and unanimously adopted.

Whereas Sugathapalage Nilmini Premalatha of Demanhandiya
(Borrower) has made default in the payment due on Bond
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No. 2001 dated 11.10.2004 attested by (MS) N. A. S. Illangakoon
of Colombo Notary Public and Deed of Assigment No.672 dated
31.08.2006 attested by (MS) S. D. N. Jayawardena of Colombo
Notary Public in favour of National Development Bank PLC
formerly of National Development Bank Limited (Bank).

And Whereas a sum of Three Hundred and Twenty-six
Thousand Three Hundred and Twenty-one Rupees (Rs.326,321)
has become due and owing on the said Bond to the Bank as at 31st
December, 2008.

The Board of Directors of the Bank acting under the powers
vested in them under the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No.04 of 1990 (Principal Act) as amended by
the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)
(Amendment) Act, No.24 of 1995 do hereby Resolve that the
property and premises including the freehold and other right title
and interest to the property and premises described below
mortgaged to the Bank by the said Bond be sold by public auction
by P. K. E. Senapathy, Licensed Auctioneer for the recovery of
the said sum of Three Hundred and Twenty-six thousand Three
Hundred and Twenty-one Rupees (Rs.326,321) or any portion
thereof remaining unpaid at the time of sale and interest on the
aggregate sum of Three Hundred and Twenty-four Thousand
Two Hundred and Eighteen Rupees (Rs.324,218) due on the said
Bond at the rate of Twelve Percent (12%) per annum from 1st
day of January 2009 to the date of sale together with costs of
advertising selling and other charges incurred in terms of Section
13 of the Principal Act less any payments (if any) since received”.

DESCRIPTION OF THE MORTGAGED PROPERTY
ABOVE REFERRED TO

All that divided and defined allotment depicted in Plan No. 927
dated 11.06.1997 made by M. Gunasekera, Licensed Surveyor of the
land called Kosgahawatta situated at Kaluwairippuwa East in
Dunagaha Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale in the District of Gampaha
Western Province and bounded on the North by Lot 23A in Plan No.
6031A, East by Road (12ft. wide), South by Road (20ft. wide) and
on the West by Lot 22 in Plan No. 6031 A and containing in extent
Thirteen decimal Five perches (0A., 0R., 13.5P.) together with the
trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon and registered
in Volume/Folio E 779/239 in the Gampaha Land Registry together
with the right of way over Road Reservation (20ft. wide) in Plan No.
927 aforesaid.

Director /General Manager,
National Development Bank PLC.

07-76

PEOPLE’S BANK - KADAWATHA  BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No.32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following was unanimously passed by
the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section 29D of

the People’s Bank Act, No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No.32
of 1986 at their meeting held on 24.04.2009.

Whereas Hewagamage Kithsiri has made default in payment
due on the Bond No. 604 dated 28.02.2008 attested by Eva
Doreen Mallawarachchi, Notary Public of Colombo in favour of
the People’s Bank and there is now due and owing to the People’s
Bank a sum of Rupees Three Million One Hundred and Thirty
-four Thousand Five Hundrd and Fifty-six and cents Seventy -
eight (Rs.3,134,556.78) ont he said Bonds. The Board of Directors
of the People’s Bank under the powers vested in them by the
People’s Bank Act, No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No.32
of 1986 do hereby resolve that the property and premises
mortgaged to the said Bank by the said bond No.604 be sold by
Public Auction by Schokman and Samarawickrema, Licensed
Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery of the said sum of Rupees
Three Million One Hundred and Thirty-four Thousand Five
Hundred and Fifty-six and cents Seventy-eight (Rs.3,134,556.78)
and with further interest of Rupees Three Million One Hundred
and Thirty-four Thousand Five Hundred and Fifty-six and cents
Seventy-eighty (Rs.3,134,556.78) at 23% per annum from
01.07.2008, to date of sale and costs of sale and moneys
recoverabe under Section 29L) of the said People’s Bank Act Less
payments (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 24
depicted in Plan No. 954 dated 06.03.1994 made by J. P. I.
Abeykoon, L. S. of the land called Paragahawatta situated at
Nilpanagoda and Medamulla in Dasiya Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale
in the District of Gampaha Western Province and bounded on the
North by Lot 99, East by Lot 25, South by land belonging to B. D.
M. Fernando (Lot03), West by Lot 106 and containing in extent
Twenty perches (0A., 0R., 20P.) together with the soil, trees,
plantations, buildings and everything else standing thereon and
registered under C 949/81 at the land Registry of Negombo.

Together with right of way depicted in the said Plan.

By order of the Board of Directors.

Regional Manager,
Gampaha.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
Gampaha,
No.131, Kandy Road,
Belummahara,
Mudungoda.

07-95
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 COMMERCIAL  BANK  OF  CEYLON  PLC

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (Registration No. PQ
116) under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

LOAN Account Nos. 357423, 359131, 359139, 361211, 361479,
362454, 363029, 366238, 402449, 432966, 316902, 428857, 429248,
430303, 430899, 431902, 432284, 432678, 433798, 434859, 434860,
435547, 436850, 436857, 439016, 440544, 441122, 441128, 441484,
444470, 444474, 444671, 445444, 445447, 446577, 446579, 446583,
446585, 446919, 447863, 447866, 447869, 449550, 449553, 449559,
A/C Nos.: 1030009359.

Neat Lanka (Private) Limited. At a meeting held on 24th April
2009 the Board of Directors of Commercial Bank of Ceylon
Limited resolved specially and unanimously as follows :-

“Whereas Neat Lanka (Private) Limited a Company duly
incorporated under the Companies Act and having its registered
office at No.595 A/1, Galle Road, Colombo 06 as the Obligor has
made default in the payment due on Bond No. 3296 dated 28th
August 2006 attested by J. R. Gamage, Notary Public of
Colombo in favour of Commercial Bank of Ceylon Limited now
known as Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC and there is now due
and owing to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC as at 20th
March, 2009  a sum of Rupees One Hundred and Seventy-four
Million Two Hundred and Fifty-nine Thousand Two Hundred
and Fifty-nine and cents Ninety-three (Rs.174,259,259.93) on
the said Bond and the Board of Directors of Commercial Bank of
Ceylon PLC under the powers vested by Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No.04 of 1990 do hereby resolve
that the property and premises morefully described in the
Schedule hereto and mortgaged to the Commercial Bank of
Ceylon PLC by the said Bond No.3296 be sold by Public Auction
by Mr. L. B. Senanayake, Licensed Auctioneer of No.99, Hulftdorp
Street, Colombo 12 for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees
One Hundred and Seventy-four Million Two Hundred and Fifty
-nine Thousand Two Hundred and Fifty-nine and cents Ninety
-three (Rs.174,259,259.93) with further interest on a sum of
Rs.142,978,004.92 at AWPLR +3% per annum from 21st
March, 2009 to date of sale together with costs of Advertising
and any other charges incurred less payments (if any) since
received”.

THE SCHEDULE ABOVE REFERRED TO

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot A
depicted in Plan No.1744 dated 28th Noverber 1989 made by M. S.
T P L Senadhira Licensed Surveyor together with the buildings trees
plantations soil and everything standing thereon presently bearing
Assessment No.27A, Galle Face Terrace situated at Ward No.37,
Kollupitiya within the Municipality and in the District of Colombo
Western Province and which said LotA is bounded  on the North by
premises bearing Assessment No. 32/1, Galle Face Terrace on the
East by R  A De Mel Mawatha on the South by Premises bearing
Assessment No.49, Kollupitiya Road and on the West by Lots B,
C and premises bearing Assessment Nos. 23, 25 and 27 Galle Face

Terrace and containing in extent One Rood and Twenty Two decimal
Four Four Perches (0A., 1R., 22.44P) according to the said Plan
No. 1744 and Registered under Volume/Folio A 867/16 at the
Colombo Land Registry.

Which above said Lot A according to a recent survey is described
as follows :-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1
depicted in Plan No. 1229 dated 21st February 2006 made by D. A.
Weerakkody Licensed surveyor together with the buildings trees
plantations soil and everything standing thereon bearing Assessment
No.27A, Galle Face Terrace situated at Ward No.37, Kollupitiya
aforesaid and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Premises
bearing Assessment No.32/1, Galle Face Terrace on the East by
R. A. De Mel Mawatha on the South by Premises bearing Assessment
No.29, Kollupitiya Road and  on the West by Lot C, premises bearing
Assessment Nos. 23 and 25 Galle Face Terrace and premises No.27,
Galle Face Terrace and containing in extent One Roods and Twenty
Two decimal Four Four Perches (0A., 1R., 22.44P) according to the
said Plan No. 1229.

Together with the right of way in over and along the following road
reservation :-

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot B
depicted in Plan No.1744 dated 28th November 1989 made
by M. S. T. P. L Senadhira Licensed Surveyor which said  Lot
B being identical with Lot 12 depicted in Plan No.135 dated
15th November 1961 made by R. H. De Silva Licensed
Surveyor situated at Ward No. 37, Kollupitiya aforesaid and
which said Lot B is bounded on the North by Sir Mohamed
Macan Markar Mawatha and Premises No.30, Sir Mohamed
Macan Markar Mawatha and premises Nos. : 32/5, 32 and
32/1, Galle Face Terace on the East by premises No. 30, Sir
Mohomed Macan Marker Mawatha and Lot A on the South
by premises bearing Assessment Nos. 43, 41, 39, 29 and 27
Gale Face, Colombo and on the West by Premises bearing
Assessment Nos. 4 to 20 and 20/150, Sir Mohamed Macan
Markar Mawatha and No.41 Galle Face Terrace and containing
in extent One Rood and Thirty Five decimal Eight Four
Perches (0A., 1R, 35.84P) according to the said Plan No.1744
and Registered under Volume/Folio A 867/17 at the Colombo
Land Registry.

2. All that divided and defined allotment  of land marked Lot C
depicted in Plan No. 1744 dated 28th November 1989 made
by M. S. T. P. L Senadhira Licensed Surveyor which said Lot
C being identical with Lot 31 depicted in Plan No.135 dated
15th November 1961 made by R. H. De Silva Licensed
Surveyor situated at Ward No.37, Kollupitiya aforesaid and
which said Lot B is bounded on the North by Premises bearing
Assessment Nos. 41, 47G/1 and 47G/3, Kollupitiya Road and
premises bearing Assessment Nos. 38, 5, 7, 11, 15,17, 19, 21,
23 and 25 Galle Face Terrace on the East by LotA on the South
by premises bearing Assessment No.47, Kollupitiya Road
and on the West by Kollupitiya Road and containing in extnet
One Rood and Thirty Six decimal Four Four perches
(0A., 1R., 36.44P) according to the said plan No.1744 and
Registered under Volume/Folio A 867/18 at the Colombo
Land Registry.

Mrs. R. R. Dunuwille,
Company Secretary.

07-131
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COMMERCIAL    BANK    OF    CEYLON    PLC

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

(Registration PQ No. 116) under Section 4 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,

No.04 of 1990

Loan Account No. : 308189

AT a meeting held on 24th March 2009 the Board of Directors of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolved sepcially and unanimously
as follows :-

Whereas Petta Wadu Subadhra and Igalawathumulla Gamage
Lakshman Gnanasiri Jayaweera as Obligors/Mortgagor have
made default in the payment due on Bond No.1053 dated 16th
January 2003 attested by I. S. Wijesekera, Notary Public of Galle
in favour of Commercial Bank of Ceylon Limited now Known as
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC and there is now due and owing
to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC as at 30th October 2008
a sum of Rupees One Million Six Hundred and Forty Nine
Thousand Two Hundred and Twenty Four and Cents Ninety
Three (Rs.1,649,224.93) on the said Bond and the Board of
Directors of Commerecial Bank of Ceylon PLC under the powers
vested by Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No.04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property and premises
morefully described in the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to the
Commercial bank of Ceylon PLC by the said Bond No. 1053 be
sold by Public Auction by Mr. L. B. Senanayake, Licensed
Auctioneer of No.99, Hulftdorp Street, Colombo 12 for the
recovery of the said sum of Rupees One Million Six Hundred and
Forty Nine Thousand Two Hundred and Twenty Four and Cents
Ninety Three (Rs.1,649,224.93) with further interest on a sum
of Rs.1,356,228.58 at 22% per annum from 30th October 2008
to date of sale together with costs of Advertising and any other
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE ABOVE REFERRED TO

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1 in Plan
No.2764A dated 19th November 1912 made by F. A. Gunasekera,
Licensed Surveyor of the land called Wellawalawatta together with
the buildings, trees, plantations and everything esle standing thereon
bearing Assessment No.211, Main Street situated at Ambalangoda
Ward No.3 of Urban Council Limits of Ambalangoda in the Wellaboda
Pattu in the District of Galle Southern Province and which said Lot
1 is bounded on the North by  Wellewalawatta whereon Malliyawadu
Andiris resided on the East by High Road on the  South by Lot 2 of
Wellewalawatta and on the West by Sea shore and containing in
extent Fourteen decimal One Four Perches (0A., 0R., 14.14P) and
registered under Volume/Folio A 182/236 at the Balapitiya Land
Registry.

According to a more recent survey plan the said Property is
described as follows :

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1 in Plan
No.3097 dated 10th August 2002 made by P. A. R. Chandrasiri,

Licensed Surveyor of the land called Wellawalawatta together with
the buildings, trees, plantations and everything else standing theron
bearing Assessment No.211, Main Street situate at Ambalangoda
aforesaid and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by
Wellewalawatta whereon Malliyawadu Andiris resided on the East
by Main Street on the South by Lot 2 of Wellewalawatta and on the
West by Sea shore and containing in extent Twelve decimal Seven
Five Perches (0A., 0R., 12.75P)

Mrs. R. R. DUNUWILLE,
Company Secretary.

07-129

————————

PAN  ASIA  BANKING  CORPORATION  PLC -
KOTAHENA   BRANCH

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of the Bank
under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks

(Special Provisions) Act , No.04 of 1990

AT a meeting of the Board of Directors of Pan Asia Banking
Corporation PLC held on 27.05.2009 it was resolved specially and
unanimously as follows :

Whereas Yunus Badrudeen and Badrudeen Kamrudeen have
made default in payment due on Mortgage Bond No.273 dated
15.02.2007 and attested by V. De. Fonseka, Notary Public of
Colombo in favour of Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC bearing
registration No. PQ 48 formerly called as Pan Asia Banking
Corporation Limited and Pan Asia Bank Limited ;

And whereas there is now due and owing to the Pan Asia
Banking Corporation PLC (hereinafter sometimes called as “the
Bank”) a sum of Rupees Thriteen Million Seventy Six Thousand
One Hundred and Thirty Five and Cents Ninety Three
(Rs.13,076,135.93) on account of principal and interest upto
26.04.2009 together with interest on Rupees Twelve Million
Two Hundred and Seventy-six Thousand Ninety-two and cents
Sixty-eight (Rs.12,276,092.68) at the rate of 29% per annum
from 24.04.2009 till date of payment on the said Bond. It is
hereby Resolved that in terms of Section 4 of the Recovery of
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No.04 of 1990 Sriyani
Manamperi, Licensed Auctioneer of S. M. Auction, No.09,
Belmont Street, Colombo 12, be authorised and empowered to
sell by Public auction the property mortgaged by Yunus Badrudeen
to the Bank morefully described in the Schedule hereto and for
the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Thirteen Million Seventy-
six Thousand One Hundred and Thirty-five and cents Ninety -
three (Rs.13,076,135.93) together with interest as aforesaid from
24.04.2009 to date of sale and costs and monies recoverable under
Section 13 of the said Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No.04 of 1990.
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THE  SCHEDULE  ABOVE  REFERRED TO

All that allotment of land with the buildings  thereon (including
the Eastern portion of the land depicted in Plan No. 1238 dated
13.08.1935 made by M. I. L. Marikkar Licensed Surveyor) presently
bearing Assessment Nos.48 and 50 New Moor Street in Kochchikade
Ward No.19 (formerly within the St. Sebastian Ward) of the
Municipality and District of Colombo Western Province and bounded
on the North by New Moor Street, on the East by premises bearing
Assessment No.52, New Moor Street, on the South by premises
bearing Assessment No.52, New Moor Street and remaining portion
of the land depicted in the said Plan No.1238 (premises bearing
Assessment No.46, New Moor Street vide Plan No. 129/172 dated
08.07.1972 made by S. Wijayarathnam Licensed Surveyor) and on
the West by remaining portion of the land depicted in the said Plan
No.1238 (premises bearing Assessment No. 46, New Moor Street
vide Plan No. 129/1972 date 08.07.1972 made by S. Wijayaratnam,
Licensed Surveyor) and containing in extent of Four Decimal Two
One Perches (0A., 0R., 4.21P) as per aforesaid Plan No. 130/1972
dated 08.07.1972 made by S. Wijayaratnam Licensed Surveyor and
registered at Volume/Folio A 1023/01 in the Land Registry of
Colombo.

Which said allotment of land according to a recent survey Plan No.
2296 dated 07.05.2002 made by J. A. W. Carvalho Licensed
Surveyor is described as follows :-

An allotment of land marked Lot B 1 depicted in Plan No.2296
dated 07.05.2002 made by J. A. W. Carvalho Licensed Surveyor with
the buildings standing thereon (being a re-survey of the land depicted
as Lot B in Plan No.22/1981 dated 10.04.1981 made by S.
Wijayaratnam Licensed Surveyor) presently bearing Assessment
Nos. 48 and 50, New Moor Street situated along New Moor Street
in ward No.19, Kochchikade South within the Municipality and
District of Colombo Western Province and which said Lot B 1 is
bounded on the North by New Moor Street on the East by premises
bearing Assessment No.52, New Moor Street, South by Premises
bearing Assessment No.46, New Moor Street and on the West by
premises bearing Assessment No.46, New Moort Street Containing
in extent Four Decimal Two One Perches (0A., 0R., 4.21P) according
to the said Plan No.2296.

By order of the Board of Directors.

MANONEETHA ARIYANANDA,
Manager - Recoveries.

07-155/2
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NEW SCALES OF CHARGES FOR NOTICES AND ADVERTISEMENTS IN THE
 "GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA"

EFFECTIVE AS FROM JANUARY  01, 2009

(Issued every Friday)

1. All Notices and Advertisements are published at the risk of the Advertisers.
2. All Notices and Advertisements by Private Advertisers may be handed in or sent direct by post together with full payments to the

Government Printer, Department of Government Printing, Colombo 8.
3. The office hours are from 8.30 a.m. to 4.15 p.m.
4. Cash transactions will be from 9.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m.
5. All Notices  and  Advertisements must be pre-paid. Notices and Advertisements sent direct by post should be accompanied by

Money Order, Postal Order or Cheque made payable to the Government Printer. Postage stamps will not be accepted in payment of
Advertisements.

6. To avoid errors and delay "copy"  should be on one side of the paper only and typewritten.
7. All signatures should be repeated in block letters below the written signature.
8. Notices re-change of name from Non-Government Servants and Trade Advertisements are not accepted for publication.
9. Advertisements purporting to be issued under Orders of Courts will not be inserted unless signed or attested by a Proctor of the Supreme

Court.
10. The authorised scale of charges for Notices and Advertisements is as follows from January 01, 2009 :-

   Rs. cts.
One inch or less ... ... ... 137 00
Every addition inch or fraction thereof ... ... ... 137 00
One column or 1/2 page of Gazette ... ... ... 1,300 00
Two columns or one page of Gazette ... ... ... 2,600 00

(All fractions of an inch will be charged for at the full inch rate.)
11. The "Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka" is published every Friday. Day of publication is subject to

alteration in any week where Public Holidays intervene.
12. All Notices and Advertisements should reach the Government Printer, Department of Government Printing, Colombo 8, as

shown in Schedule of Separate Notice published at the end of each part of the Gazette  of the first week of every month.
13. REVISED SUBSCRIPTION RATES EFFECTIVE FROM JANUARY 1ST 2009 :

*Annual Subscription Rates and Postage
Price Postage

Rs.  cts.  Rs. cts.
Part I :

Section I             ... ... ...                ...             ... 2,080 00 3,120 00
Section II (Advertising, Vacancies, Tenders, Examinations, etc.) 1,300 00 3,120 00
Section III          ... ... ... ... ... 780 00 3,120 00

Part I (Whole of 3 Sections together) ... ... ... 4,160 00 6,240 00
Part II                ... ... ... ... ... 580 00 3,120 00
Part III               ... ... ... ... ... 405 00 3,120 00
Part IV (Notices of Provincial Councils and Local Government) 890 00 2,400 00
Part V                ... ... ... ... ... 860 00 420 00
Part VI               ... ... ... ... ... 260 00 180 00
Extraordinary Gazette ... ... ... ... 5,145 00 5,520 00

Subscription to the “Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka” are booked per periods of not less
than 12 months so as to terminate at the end of a calendar year only.

* Rates for Single Copies (if available in stock)
Price Postage

Rs.  cts.  Rs. cts.
Part I :

Section I             ... ... ... ... 40 00 60 00
Section II            ... ... ... ... 25 00 60 00
Section III          ...    ... ... ... 15 00 60 00

Part I (Whole of 3 Sections together)... ... ... 80 00 120 00
Part II                ... ... ... ... 12 00 60 00
Part III               ... ... ... ... 12 00 60 00
Part IV (Notices of Provincial Councils and Local Government) 23 00 60 00
Part V                ... ... ... ... 123 00 60 00
Part VI               ... ... ... ... 87 00 60 00

*All remittances should be made in favour of the Superintendent, Government Publications Bureau, No. 132, Maya
Avenue, Kirulapone, Colombo 05, who is responsible for booking subscriptions and for sale of single copies.
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PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 03.07.2009

IMPORTANT  NOTICE  REGARDING  PUBLICATION   OF  GAZETTE

THE Weekly issue of the Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka is normally published on
Fridays. If a Friday happens to be a Public Holiday the Gazette is published on the working day immediately preceding
the Friday. Thus the last date specified for the receipt of notices for publication in the Gazette also varies depending
on the incidence of public holidays in the week concerned.

The Schedule below shows the date of publication and the latest time by which notices should be received
for publication in the respective weekly Gazette. All notices received out of times specified below will not be
published. Such notices will be returned to the sender by post for necessary amendment and return if publication
is desired in a subsequent issue of the Gazette. It will be in the interest of all concerned if those desirous of ensuring
the timely publication of notices in the Gazette  make it a point to see that sufficient time is allowed for postal
transmission of  notices to the Government Press.

The Government Printer does not accept payments of subscription for the Government Gazette.
Payments should be made direct to the Superintendent, Government Publications Bureau, No. 132, Maya Avenue,
Kirulapone, Colombo 05.

Note.—Payments for inserting Notices in the Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka
will be received by the Government Printer and not by the Superintendent, Government Publications Bureau.

SCHEDULE

Month Date of Publication Last Date and Time of
Acceptance of Notices for
Publication in the Gazette

JULY 03.07.2009 Friday — 19.06.2009 Friday 12 noon
10.07.2009 Friday –– 26.06.2009 Friday 12 noon
17.07.2009 Friday –– 03.07.2009 Friday 12 noon
24.07.2009 Friday –– 10.07.2009 Friday 12 noon
31.07.2009 Friday –– 17.07.2009 Friday 12 noon

AUGUST 07.08.2009 Friday — 24.07.2009 Friday 12 noon
14.08.2009 Friday –– 31.07.2009 Friday 12 noon
21.08.2009 Friday –– 07.08.2009 Friday 12 noon
28.08.2009 Friday –– 14.08.2009 Friday 12 noon

SEPTEMBER 03.09.2009 Thursday — 21.08.2009 Friday 12 noon
11.09.2009 Friday –– 28.08.2009 Friday 12 noon
18.09.2009 Friday –– 03.09.2009 Thursday 12 noon
25.09.2009 Friday –– 11.09.2009 Friday 12 noon

LAKSHMAN  GOONEWARDENA,
Government Printer.

Department of Government Printing,
Colombo 08,
January 01, 2009.

PRINTED  AT  THE  DEPARTMENT  OF  GOVERNMENT  PRINTING,  SRI  LANKA.


